Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations

Cautionary Statement Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements

With the exception of historical facts, the statements contained in
this discussion are forward-looking statements within the meaning
of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”), and are subject to the Safe Harbor provisions created by that
statute. Certain statements contained in the following Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations, including, without limitation, statements containing the
words “believes; “anticipates; “estimates; “expects; and words of
similar import, constitute forward-looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties. Such statements are based on current
expectations and are subject to risk, uncertainties and changes in
condition, significance, value and effect, including those discussed
under the heading Risk Factors within the section of this report
entitled “Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and reports filed by Solectron
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, specifically, Forms
8-K, 10-Q, 10-K, S-3, S-4 and S-8. Such risks, uncertainties and
changes in condition, significance, value and effect could cause our
actual results to differ materially from our anticipated outcomes.
Although we believe that the assumptions underlying the forward-
looking statements are reasonable, any of the assumptions could
prove inaccurate, including, but not limited to, statements about our
future operating results and business plans. We disclaim any inten-
tion or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements
as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Overview

We provide supply-chain and product life-cycle services to original
equipment manufacturers (OEMs) around the world. These companies
contract with us to build their products or to obtain services related
to product development, manufacturing and post-production require-
ments. In many cases, we build and service products that carry the
brand names of our customers.

Our strategy is to offer our customers significant competitive
advantages by having them outsource to us their supply-chain and
product life-cycle service needs. We differentiate ourselves from our
competitors by providing superior levels of quality, service and value.
We accomplish this by offering value-added solutions based on our
broad range of services. As a result, we create compelling outsourc-
ing solutions that our customers can utilize in whole or in part.

We serve several segments of the electronics products and
technology markets. Much of our business is related to the follow-
ing products:

» Networking equipment such as routers and switches that move
traffic across the Internet;

* Telecommunications equipment;

» Computing equipment, including workstations, notebooks, desk-
tops, servers, storage systems and peripherals;

» Consumer products such as high-end cellular phones, set-top
boxes, personal/handheld communications devices and home
game consoles;

« Electronic sub-systems for the automotive, aviation and industrial
markets; and

* Other electronics equipment and products.

Our customers include many of the world's leading technology
companies, such as Cisco, Nortel, Ericsson, Sun Microsystems, IBM,
Apple, Sony, Lucent, HP/Compaq and Wavecom.

We have a comprehensive range of services that meet customer
supply chain needs throughout the product life cycle. Our services
include:

* Advanced technology building block products and design;

* Product design;

» New product introduction (NPI) management;

* Prototyping;

* Product testing;

» Full product manufacturing, including printed circuit board
assembly (PCBA) and complete product systems assembly;

» Materials purchasing and supply-base management;

« Distribution and installation;

* Product repair and warranty service; and

* End-consumer technical support and customer relationship
management (CRM) services.

We bring these services together to provide integrated solutions
for customers in electronics and technology markets. By utilizing
our services, customers gain cost and time advantages that help
improve their competitiveness and enable them to focus on their
core competencies of sales, marketing, and research and develop-
ment. More specifically, we provide several benefits to OEMs: faster
time-to-market; lower total costs; better asset utilization; focused
resource allocation; access to leading manufacturing and service
technologies; and access to worldwide capabilities.



We are benefiting from increased worldwide market acceptance
of, and reliance upon, the outsourcing of manufacturing, supply-
chain and product life-cycle services by electronics OEMs. Many
OEMs in the electronics and other industries outsource manufactur-
ing and related supply-chain services as part of their business
strategies.

Our principal executive offices are at 777 Gibraltar Drive,
Milpitas, California 95035. Our telephone number is (408) 957-
8500 and Internet address is www.solectron.com. As of August 31,
2002, we employed approximately 73,000 associates worldwide,
including approximately 9,000 temporary associates.

Critical Accounting Policies

Management is required to make judgments, assumptions and esti-
mates that affect the amounts reported when we prepare financial
statements and related disclosures in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States. Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements describes the significant account-
ing policies and methods used in the preparation of our consolidated
financial statements. Estimates are used for, but not limited to, our
accounting for contingencies, allowance for doubtful accounts,
inventory reserves, goodwill and other intangible asset impairments,
and restructuring costs. Actual results could differ from these esti-
mates. The following critical accounting policies are impacted signifi-
cantly by judgments, assumptions and estimates used in the
preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Our net sales are primarily derived from full product manufacturing
including, but not limited to, PCBA, sub-system and complete system
assembly and manufacturing of memory products and embedded
systems. We also offer services consisting of repair, warranty and
end-customer technical support services. Revenue from manufac-
turing services is recognized upon shipment of the manufactured
product. Revenue from other services is recognized as the services
are performed.

LOSS CONTINGENCIES

We are subject to the possibility of various loss contingencies arising
in the ordinary course of business. We consider the likelihood and
our ability to reasonably estimate the amount of loss in determining
loss contingencies. Estimated loss contingencies are accrued when
it is probable that a liability has been incurred or an asset has been
impaired and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. We
regularly evaluate information available to us to determine whether
such accruals should be adjusted.

INVENTORY RESERVES

The majority of our inventory purchase commitments are based upon
demand forecasts that our customers provide to us. The forecasted
period is generally three months, except for long lead-time items for
which the period is longer. Customers frequently make changes to
their forecasts, thereby often requiring that we make changes to
our inventory purchases, commitments, and production scheduling
and may require us to cancel open purchase commitments with

our vendors. This process may lead to on-hand inventory quantities
and on-order purchase commitments that are in excess of the cus-
tomer's revised needs, or parts that become obsolete before use

in production.

We execute supply agreements with our most significant cus-
tomers in our Global Operations business unit. Under these supply
agreements, the responsibility for excess or obsolete inventory
related to raw materials that we purchased or ordered to meet cus-
tomers’ demand forecasts lies with the customers. However, we are
responsible for excess and obsolete inventory resulting from inven-
tory purchases in excess of inventory needed to meet customer
demand forecasts at the time the purchase commitments were
made, as well as inventory purchases generally not covered by our
supply agreements with our customers or for inventory purchases
for customers with whom we have no supply agreements (as is gen-
erally the case in our business units other than Global Operations).

Each supply agreement specifies the agreed-upon definition of
excess and obsolete inventory and the procedures for disposition
including our right to sell the inventory back to the customer. The
supply agreements generally allow a period of time during which we
and our customers work together to reduce or eliminate the amount
of potentially excess and obsolete inventory. After the expiration of
the specified time period, we may exercise our contractual right to
sell the remaining excess and obsolete inventory back to the cus-
tomer. The time period allowed to mitigate excess and obsolete
inventory can be up to 12 months. Consequently, there will be time
lags between when excess or obsolete inventory is first identified
and when we are paid from the exercise of our right to sell this
inventory to the customer.

We do not provide inventory allowances for excess and obsolete
inventory when (i) the supply agreement provides us with the con-
tractual right to sell inventory that is considered excess or obsolete
back to our customers, and (i) we believe the customer is capable
of honoring its contractual obligation to purchase the inventory. If
our customers do not comply with their contractual obligations, the
inventory reserves included in our financial statements may be under-
stated. For example, we are subject to the risk that a customer may
not comply with its contractual obligation to purchase the excess
and obsolete inventory under a supply agreement because the cus-
tomer is experiencing weakening financial conditions. In fiscal 2002,
several of our customers, including customers who accounted for
10% or more of our fiscal 2002 revenue, were in the telecommu-
nications industry, an industry that has experienced declining reve-
nue, large losses, negative cash flows, and several bankruptcies or
defaults on borrowing arrangements. There is a risk that these cus-
tomers may not purchase inventory back from us which could harm
our financial condition. During 2002, no material customer informed
us that it would be unable to honor its contractual obligation under a
supply agreement to purchase excess or obsolete inventory from us.

For our Global Operations business unit, we record inventory
reserves for excess and obsolete inventory for inventory which we
have determined that our customers are not responsible for or for
which we believe they are unable to live up to their obligation to pur-
chase such inventory from us. For our other business units, we make
judgments with respect to recording inventory reserves based on
various factors such as the aging and anticipated future demand of
the inventory. In these other units, we generally do not have the right
to require our customers to purchase excess or obsolete inventory.

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

We evaluate the collectibility of our accounts receivable based on
a combination of factors. In cases where we are aware of circum-
stances that may impair a specific customer's ability to meet its

financial obligations to us, we record a specific allowance against
amounts due to us, and thereby reduce the net recognized receiv-
able to the amount we reasonably believe will be collected. For all



other customers, we recognize allowances for doubtful accounts
based on the length of time the receivables are outstanding, industry
and geographic concentrations, the current business environment
and our historical experience. If the financial condition of our cus-
tomers deteriorates or if economic conditions worsen, additional
allowances may be required in the future.

GOODWILL

We perform goodwill impairment tests annually during the fourth
quarter of our fiscal year and more frequently if an event or circum-
stance indicates that an impairment loss has been incurred. Such
events or circumstances may include significant adverse changes in
the general business climate, among others. We perform the impair-
ment tests at the reporting unit level which we have determined to
be consistent with our business units as defined in Note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements except for our Technology
Solutions and Global Services business units which were disaggre-
gated further. The tests are performed by determining the fair values
of our reporting units using a discounted future cash flow model and
comparing those fair values to the carrying values of the reporting
units, including goodwill. If the fair value of a reporting unit is less
than its carrying value, we then allocate the fair value of the unit to
all the assets and liabilities of that unit (including any unrecognized
intangible assets) as if the reporting unit's fair value was the pur-
chase price to acquire the reporting unit. The excess of the fair
value of the reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets
and liabilities is the implied fair value of the goodwill. If the carrying
amount of the reporting unit's goodwill exceeds the implied fair
value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an
amount equal to that excess. The process of evaluating the potential
impairment of goodwill is subjective and requires judgment at many
points during the test including future revenue forecasts, discount
rates and various reporting unit allocations.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

We perform quarterly impairment tests for other intangible assets.
Our intangible assets are primarily related to supply agreements and
intellectual property obtained from asset acquisitions. Such an asset
is considered impaired if its carrying amount exceeds the future net
undiscounted cash flows that the asset is expected to generate. If
such asset is considered to be impaired, the impairment to be rec-
ognized is the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset, if
any, exceeds its fair value determined using a discounted cash flow
model. While our cash flow assumptions and estimated useful lives
are consistent with our business plans, there is significant judgment
involved in determining the cash flows attributable to our other
intangible assets.

RESTRUCTURING AND RELATED IMPAIRMENT COSTS

We have recorded restructuring and impairment costs in light of
customer demand declines and economic downturns. These restruc-
turing and impairment charges include employee severance and
benefit costs, costs related to leased facilities that will be abandoned
and subleased and owned facilities no longer used by us which will
be disposed of, costs related to leased equipment that will be aban-
doned and impairment of owned equipment that will be disposed of.
For owned facilities and equipment, the impairment loss recognized
was based on the fair value less costs to sell, with fair value esti-
mated based on existing market prices for similar assets. Severance

and benefit costs are recorded in compliance with Emerging Issues
Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain
Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity.”
For leased facilities that will be abandoned and subleased, the esti-
mated lease loss is accrued for future lease payments subsequent
to abandonment less any estimated sublease income. In order to
estimate future sublease income, we work with an independent
broker to determine the length of time until we believe we can sub-
lease a facility (generally estimated at 24 months) and the amount
of rent we expect to receive. As of August 31, 2002, the majority
of the facilities we plan to sublease have not been and, accordingly,
our estimates of expected sublease income could change based
on factors that affect our ability to sublease those facilities such as
general economic conditions and the real estate market, among
others. For owned facilities and equipment held for disposal, the
impairment losses recognized in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 121, “Accounting for
the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to
Be Disposed Of" are based on the fair value estimated using exist-
ing market prices for similar assets less the costs to sell. See Note
16 to the consolidated financial statements, “Restructuring” for
further discussion of our restructuring activities.

Results of Operations

The electronics industry is subject to rapid technological change,
product obsolescence and price competition. These and other fac-
tors affecting the electronics industry, or any of our major customers
in particular, could materially harm our results of operations. See
“Risk Factors” for additional factors relating to possible fluctuations
of our operating results.

Results of Operations for Years Ended
August 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

The following table summarizes certain items in the consolidated
statements of operations as a percentage of net sales. The financial
information and the discussion below should be read in conjunction
with the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes
thereto.

Years ended August 31, 2002 2001 2000
Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of sales 941 92.0 91.0
Gross profit 5.9 8.0 9.0
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and
administrative 6.7 4.4 3:3
Research and development 0.6 0.4 0.4
Goodwill amortization expense = 0.7 =
Acquisition costs = 0.2 0.2
Restructuring and impairment
costs 26.9 2.8 0.1
Operating income (loss) (28.3) (0.5) 5.0
Net interest income (expense) (1.4) (0.3) 0.2
Gain on retirement of debt 0.6 = =
Income (loss) before income taxes (29.1) 0.8) 5.2
Income tax expense (benefit) (3.8) 0.2) 1.7
Net income (loss) (25.3)% (0.6)% 3.5%




Net Sales

For the year ended August 31, 2002, net sales fell to $12.3 billion,
a decrease of 34.3% from fiscal 2001. Net sales of $18.7 billion in
fiscal 2001 were 32.2% greater than fiscal 2000. The sales decline
in fiscal 2002 compared with fiscal 2001 was primarily attributable
to continued weakness in customer demand, particularly in our
telecommunications sector, resulting from the worldwide economic
slowdown. The decrease was partially offset by revenues from our
recent acquisitions including C-MAC which contributed approxi-
mately 7% to 9% of our total revenues in fiscal 2002. The sales
growth in fiscal 2001 compared with fiscal 2000 was primarily
attributable to increased demand from our personal computer, note-
book computer, consumer and automotive business sectors in the
first half of fiscal 2001, and our acquisitions during fiscal 2001.

We are organized in four business units including Global
Operations, Technology Solutions, Global Services and the newly
established MicroSystems created from our acquisition of C-MAC in
December 2001. Our largest business unit, Global Operations, pro-
vided 83.8%, 91.9% and 87.8% of net sales, respectively, for fiscal
2002, 2001 and 2000. Our Technology Solutions business unit
contributed 7.0%, 6.4%, and 10.56% of net sales, respectively, for
fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000. Our Global Services business unit
contributed 6.7%, 1.7% and 1.7% of net sales, respectively, in fiscal
2002, 2001 and 2000. Our MicroSystems business unit contributed
2.5% of net sales during fiscal 2002.

GLOBAL OPERATIONS BUSINESS UNIT

Fiscal 2002 net sales declined to $10.3 billion, a decrease of
40.1% from fiscal year 2001. This decrease was due to continued
weakness in customer demand, particularly in our telecommunica-
tions sector. Fiscal 2001 net sales grew to $172 billion, an increase
of 38.4% over fiscal 2000. This increase was due to higher demand
growth from our customers during the first half of fiscal 2001 and
the acquisition of NatSteel Electronics Ltd (NEL) and Shinei as well
as two Sony manufacturing plants during fiscal 2001.

TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS BUSINESS UNIT

Net sales for fiscal years 2002, 2001 and 2000 were $860.3 mil-
lion, $1.2 billion and $1.5 billion, respectively. The reduction in fiscal
2002 of 28.4% from fiscal 2001 and the decrease in fiscal 2001
of 19.2% from fiscal 2000 were principally due to sluggish demand
and declines in average selling prices of memory components.

GLOBAL SERVICES BUSINESS UNIT

Net sales were $822.7 million, $309.6 million and $232.5 million in
fiscal years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Net sales increased
165.7% in fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001. Our recent acqui-
sitions of Stream International and Artesyn Solutions, Inc. were

the main contributors to the increase as well as higher demand by
customers for after-sales support service provided by this business
unit. The increase of 33.2% in net sales in fiscal 2001 compared

to fiscal 2000 was primarily due to stronger customer demand and
acquisitions of IBM Netherlands service facilities as well as MCC-
Sequel during fiscal 2001.

MICROSYSTEMS BUSINESS UNIT

This new business unit was formed as a result of our acquisition of
C-MAC. Our MicroSystems business unit is a provider of sensors,
controllers, actuators and other sophisticated componentry for key
sectors of the economy such as automotive and aviation. Net sales
were $305.8 million in fiscal 2002.

INTERNATIONAL SALES

Net sales from our international sites, as a percentage of consoli-
dated net sales, have grown over the last three fiscal years. Interna-
tional locations contributed 61% of consolidated net sales in fiscal
2002, compared with 51% in fiscal 2001 and 41% in fiscal 2000.
The increase was primarily due to project transfers from sites in
the United States to Asian sites. These transfers are primarily due
to lower costs in Asia. As a result of our international sales and
facilities, our operations are subject to the risks of doing business
abroad. See “Risk Factors” for additional factors relating to possible
fluctuations of our international operating results. While these
dynamics have not materially harmed our results of operations, we
cannot assure that there will not be such an impact in the future.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Net sales to major customers as a percentage of consolidated net
sales were as follows:

Years ended August 31, 2002 2001 2000
Nortel 13.6% 11.9%

HP/Compaq™ 11.2% 10.6% 15.7%
Cisco 10.9% 11.5% 12.0%
Ericsson * 13.7% 13.0%

“less than 10%
“percents in all periods presented reflect the combined net sales to HP and Compagq due
to their merger in May 2002.

Our top ten customers accounted for 65% of net sales in fiscal
2002, 72% of net sales in fiscal 2001 and 74% of net sales in
fiscal 2000. We are dependent upon continued revenues from
Nortel, Cisco and HP/Compaq as well as our other large customers.
We cannot guarantee that these or any other customers will not
increase or decrease as a percentage of consolidated net sales
either individually or as a group. Consequently, any material decrease
in sales to these or other customers could materially harm our
results of operations.

We believe that our ability to grow depends on increasing sales
to existing customers for their current and future product genera-
tions and on successfully attracting new customers. Customer
contracts can be canceled and volume levels can be changed or
delayed. The timely replacement of delayed, canceled or reduced
orders with new business cannot be ensured. In addition, we cannot
assume that any of our current customers will continue to utilize our
services. Consequently, our results of operations may be materially
adversely affected.



Gross Profit

Our gross margin percentages were 5.9%, 8.0% and 9.0% for fiscal
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. During the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2002, we recorded a charge of approximately $97 million to
reduce the carrying value of excess and obsolete inventory. This
charge recorded in cost of sales resulted in reduction of gross mar-
gin and included excess and obsolete inventory identified in our
product-oriented Technology Solutions and other business units. In
addition, our gross margin was affected by inefficiencies associated
with reduced workload and restructuring activities. We continue to
shift capacity to low-cost locations. Those transfer costs were
accounted for as operational costs versus restructuring costs and,
consequently, they affected our gross margins.

For our Global Operations business unit, we anticipate a larger
percentage of our sales may be derived from systems-build projects
that generally yield lower profit margins than PCBA. We expect most
of our Technology Solutions sales may continue to be derived from
turn-key projects, which typically yield lower profit margins than con-
signment projects. In addition, factors affecting Technology Solutions
profit margins include the sales mix of specialty memory modules,
standard memory modules, communication card products and
embedded computer systems, as well as changes in average
memory densities used in memory products.

In the foreseeable future, our overall gross margin will depend
primarily on several factors, including but not limited to, product mix,
production efficiencies, utilization of manufacturing capacity, start-up
and integration costs of new and acquired businesses, percentage
of sales derived from systems-build and turn-key projects, pricing
within the electronics industry, component costs and delivery linearity,
and the cost structure at individual sites. Over time, gross margins
at the individual sites and for Solectron as a whole may continue
to fluctuate. Increases in the systems-build business or turn-key
projects, additional costs associated with new projects, and price
erosion within the electronics industry could harm our gross margin.

In addition, we have in the past experienced component short-
ages. While the component availability fluctuates from time to time
and is subject to lead time and other constraints, this could possibly
have a negative impact on our sales and gross margins in the fore-
seeable future. Therefore, we cannot assure that our gross margin
will not fluctuate or decrease in future periods.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

In absolute dollars, our selling, general and administrative (SG&A)
expenses remained consistent in fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal
2001, and increased 77.2% in fiscal 2001 compared to fiscal 2000.
As a percentage of net sales, SG&A expenses were 6.7% in fiscal
2002, 4.4% in fiscal 2001 and 3.3% in fiscal 2000. The increase
as a percentage of net sales in fiscal 2002 as compared to fiscal
2001 resulted from a large reduction in net sales and the fact
that some portions of these expenses were fixed. The increases

in absolute dollars and as a percentage of net sales in fiscal 2001
compared to fiscal 2000 were due to higher human resource
costs, information systems costs, and higher SG&A resulting from
our acquisitions of NEL, Centennial, MCC-Sequel, Shinei and two
Sony manufacturing facilities.

Research and Development Expenses

With the exception of our Technology Solutions business unit, our
research and development (R&D) activities have been primarily
developing prototype and engineering design capabilities, develop-
ing common tools for electrical, mechanical design, standardizing
a single functional test platform, developing methods for handling,
processing and re-flow of high /0 ball grid array, high reliability
environmental stress technology and the implementation of envi-
ronmentally friendly assembly processes such as lead free and
no-clean. Technology Solutions’ R&D efforts are concentrated on
new product development and improvement of product designs
through improvements in functionality and the use of microproces-
sors in embedded applications.

In absolute dollars, R&D expenses increased 7.0% in fiscal
2002 compared to fiscal 2001 and increased 15.0% in fiscal 2001
compared to fiscal 2000. As a percentage of net sales, R&D
expense was 0.6%, 0.4% and 0.4% of net sales for fiscal 2002,
2001 and 2000. The increase in absolute dollars in R&D expenses
in fiscal 2002 was primarily due to the acquisition of C-MAC.

The increase in absolute dollars in 2001 was primarily due to our
increased R&D effort in SMART and Force and new R&D projects
at our various sites.

Goodwill Amortization Expense

We adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets;
effective September 1, 2001, and discontinued amortization of
goodwill in fiscal 2002. The goodwill amortization expense of $139.9
million in fiscal 2001 primarily resulted from the NEL acquisition.
During the second quarter of fiscal 2001, we purchased all of the
outstanding issued share capital and convertible bonds of NEL for
approximately $2.3 billion and $122.4 million, respectively. The NEL
acquisition was accounted for under the purchase accounting
method and, as a result, we recorded approximately $1.97 billion of
goodwill that was amortized over ten years prior to our adoption of
the new standard in fiscal 2002.

Acquisition Costs

During fiscal 2001, we recorded $29.7 million in acquisition and
integration costs, which were primarily related to the NEL acquisition
and were not includable in the purchase price. A charge for acquisi-
tion costs of $26.8 million was incurred in fiscal 2000 as a result of
our pooling transactions with SMART, AMERICOM and Bluegum
during fiscal 2000. Our acquisition costs consisted of investment
banker fees, legal fees, accounting fees, registration fees and other
direct costs.

Restructuring and Impairment Costs
RESTRUCTURING

Beginning in fiscal 2001, we embarked on a restructuring plan to
review our operations in light of the economic downturn and began
undertaking several measures to restructure the company. The
measures, which included reducing the workforce, consolidating
certain facilities and changing the strategic focus of a number of
sites, were largely intended to align our capacity and infrastructure
to anticipated customer demand as well as rationalize our foot-
print worldwide.



During fiscal 2002, we recorded restructuring and impairment
costs related to this plan of $615.5 million against earnings. These
restructuring and impairment charges occurred primarily in the sec-
ond and third quarters, included employee severance and benefit
costs of approximately $119.8 million, costs related to leased facili-
ties that will be abandoned and subleased of $80.3 million, costs
related to leased equipment that will be abandoned of $23.8 million,
impairment of equipment of $1278 million, impairment of facilities
of $81.0 million, impairment of IT software and other assets of
$162.1 million and other exit costs of $20.7 million.

The employee severance and benefit costs included in these
restructuring charges relate to the elimination of approximately
15,000 full-time positions worldwide and all such positions have
been eliminated under this plan. Approximately 69% of the positions
eliminated were in the Americas region, 20% were in Europe and
11% were in Asia/Pacific. The employment reductions primarily
affected employees in manufacturing and back office support func-
tions. Facilities and equipment subject to restructuring were primarily
located in the Americas and Europe within the Global Operations
business unit. For leased facilities that will be abandoned and sub-
leased, the lease costs represent future lease payments subsequent
to abandonment less estimated sublease income. For owned facili-
ties and equipment, the impairment loss recognized was based on
the fair value less cost to sell, with fair value based on estimates of
existing market prices for similar assets.

During fiscal 2001, we recorded total restructuring and impair-
ment costs of $517.3 million against earnings. These restructur-
ing and impairment charges occurred primarily in the third and
fourth quarters, included employee severance and benefit costs
of $70.0 million, costs related to leased facilities that will be aban-
doned and subleased of $56.4 million, costs related to leased
equipment that will be abandoned of approximately $117.5 million,
impairment of equipment of $188.2 million, impairment of facilities
of $37.7 million, impairment of goodwill, intangible and other assets
related to closed facilities of $42.2 million and other exit costs of
$5.3 million.

The employee severance and benefit costs included in the fiscal
2001 restructuring charges related to the elimination of approxi-
mately 11,800 full-time positions worldwide and all such positions
have been eliminated under this plan. Approximately 67% of the
positions eliminated were in the Americas region, 23% were in
Europe and 10% were in Asia/Pacific. The employment reductions
primarily affected employees in manufacturing and back office sup-
port functions. Facilities and equipment subject to restructuring were
primarily located in the Americas and Europe within the Global
Operations business unit. For leased facilities that were abandoned
and subleased, the lease costs represent future lease payments
subsequent to abandonment less estimated sublease income. For
owned facilities and equipment, the impairment loss recognized was
based on the fair value less cost to sell, with fair value based on
estimates of existing market prices for similar assets.

We recorded restructuring costs of $11.1 million in fiscal 2000
primarily related to the consolidations of certain facilities acquired in
the SMART and Sequel mergers.

In furtherance of the implementation of the restructuring plan,
we expect to incur restructuring-related charges in the range of an
aggregate of $100 million over the next few quarters, although no
certainty can be attributed to this amount or the timing of its recog-
nition. We continue to evaluate our cost structure relative to our
revenue levels and may take additional restructuring charges in the
future. If we incur additional restructuring-related charges, our finan-
cial condition and results of operations may suffer.

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSET CHARGES

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets’ SFAS
No. 142 requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives no longer be amortized, but instead tested for impairment
at least annually. SFAS No.142 also requires that intangible assets
with definite useful lives be amortized over their respective estimated
lives to their estimated residual values, and be reviewed for impair-
ment according to SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of’

SFAS No. 142 required that we evaluate existing intangible
assets and goodwill that we acquired in prior purchase business
combinations, and to make any necessary reclassifications in
order to conform to the new criteria in SFAS No. 141, “Business
Combinations; for recognition apart from goodwill. Upon adoption of
SFAS No. 142, we reassessed the useful lives and residual values
of all intangible assets acquired in purchase business combinations,
and no significant changes were deemed necessary. We were also
required to test the intangible assets for impairment within the first
interim period and no impairment loss was deemed necessary.

For the transitional goodwill impairment evaluation, SFAS No. 142
required us to perform an assessment of whether there was an indi-
cation that goodwill was impaired as of the date of adoption, or step
one of the impairment test. To accomplish this, we identified the
reporting units to be consistent with the business units as defined
in Note 12 except for our Technology Solutions and Global Services
business units which were disaggregated further. We then deter-
mined the carrying value of each reporting unit by allocating the
assets and liabilities, including the goodwill and intangible assets, to
the units as of the date of adoption. We had up to six months from
the date of adoption to determine the fair value of each reporting
unit and compare it to the reporting unit's carrying value. If a report-
ing unit's carrying amount exceeds its fair value, an indication exists
that the reporting unit's goodwill is impaired and we are required to
perform the second step of the transitional impairment test. During
the second quarter of fiscal 2002, we performed step one of the
transitional test and concluded that there was no impairment and
no second step was necessary.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, we performed our
annual goodwill impairment test in accordance with SFAS No. 142
which included step one as described above for each of our report-
ing units. Results of step one indicated that an impairment existed
within our Global Operations business unit since the estimated fair
value, based on expected future discounted cash flows to be gener-
ated from the unit, was less than its carrying value. Pursuant to the
second step of the test, we compared the implied fair value of the
unit's goodwill (determined by allocating the unit's fair value, based
on the expected future discounted cash flows, to all its assets,
recognized and unrecognized, and liabilities in a manner similar to
a purchase price allocation for an acquired business) to its carrying
amount. In connection with allocating the fair value of the Global
Operations business unit, we also obtained independent valuations
of certain unrecognized intangible assets as well as our fixed assets.

The discounted cash flow models used to determine the fair
values of the reporting units in the tests were prepared using reve-
nue and expense projections based on our current operating plan.
The revenue projections are our best estimates considering current
and expected economic and industry conditions. The discounted
cash flow model also included a terminal value for years six and
beyond that assumes future free cash flow growth ranging from 3%
to 4% based on our estimates and standard industry rates used by
analysts monitoring our industry. The cash flows were discounted



using a weighted average cost of capital ranging from 12% to 13%
which is our best estimate considering the debt and equity structure
of the Company and external industry data. The discounted cash
flows related to the terminal value represents approximately 84%
of total expected future discounted cash flows.

Significant negative industry and economic trends affecting our
current and future operations as well as a significant decline in
our stock price contributed to our fourth quarter impairment test
resulting in an impairment of our goodwill related to our Global
Operations business unit of approximately $2.5 billion.

In addition, we performed our quarterly impairment test of other
intangible assets during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002. As a
result, we recorded an impairment charge related to a supply agree-
ment with a major customer of approximately $191 million. This
impairment occurred due to reduced expectations of our realized
sales under our supply agreement with that customer and was
measured by comparing the intangible asset's carrying amount to
the fair value as determined using a discounted cash flow model.

The impairments referred to above were recorded within
“Restructuring and Impairment Costs” in the accompanying consoli-
dated statements of operations for the quarter and year ended
August 31, 2002.

The process of evaluating the potential impairment is subjective
and requires judgment at many points during the test including
future revenue forecasts, discount rates and various reporting unit
allocations. We may continue to experience goodwill and other
intangible asset impairment charges in the future as a result of
adverse changes in the electronics industry, customer demand and
other market conditions, which may have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition.

Net Interest Income (Expense)

Net interest expense was $174.0 million in fiscal 2002 compared to
$59.1 million in fiscal 2001, and net interest income of $35.3 mil-
lion in fiscal 2000. The net interest expense increase in fiscal 2002
primarily resulted from our issuance of the 7.25% Adjustable
Conversion-Rate Equity Security units (ACES) and the 9.625%
Senior Notes due 2009 during the second quarter of fiscal 2002
which bear interest at a higher rate than the Liquid Yield Option™
Notes (LYONs) securities they effectively replaced. The net interest
expense in fiscal 2001 primarily resulted from our issuances of
4.0%, 2.75% and 3.25% LYONSs and 7.375% senior notes. The net
interest income in fiscal 2000 was attributed primarily to interest
income earned on cash and investments from the proceeds of the
2.76% LYONSs which were issued in May 2000.

™Trademark of Merrill Lynch & Co,, Inc.

Gain on Retirement of Debt

During fiscal 2002, in our continuing effort to strengthen our balance
sheet, we retired approximately $2.9 billion of accreted values of
LYONs for cash of approximately $2.8 billion resulting in a gain of
$76.4 million. See footnote (2) to our unaudited quarterly financial
information. Due to our early adoption of SFAS No. 145, “Rescission
of FASB Statements Nos. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections; such gains were reclas-
sified from extraordinary to a separate line within non-operating
income (expense). See Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements,
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies! Also, there was a loss
of $0.7 million resulting from retirement of other long-term debt.

Income Taxes

We reported income tax benefits of $467.3 million in fiscal 2002
and $34.2 million in fiscal 2001 arising from the loss incurred in
those periods. Income tax expense was $238.8 million in fiscal
2000. Our effective income tax benefit rates were 13.1% and
21.7% in fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively. Our effective income
tax expense rate was 32.3% in fiscal 2000. Our benefit rate in fiscal
2002 was less than the fiscal 2001 rate due principally to goodwill
impairment expense, which for the most part is nondeductible for
tax purposes. Our benefit rate in fiscal 2001 was lower than our
expense rate in preceding years because we did not recognize cer-
tain income tax benefits in foreign jurisdictions for which future
realization is uncertain.

In general, the effective income tax rate is largely a function of
the balance between income from domestic and international opera-
tions. Our international operations, taken as a whole, have been
taxed at a lower rate than those in the United States, primarily due
to tax holidays granted to several of our overseas sites in Malaysia,
Singapore, and China. The Malaysian tax holiday is effective through
July 2011, subject to some conditions, including maintaining certain
levels of research and development expenditures. The Singapore tax
holiday is effective through March 2011, subject to some conditions.
Seven of our China sites have separate tax holiday agreements.
Each agreement expires five years from the first profitable year
for each site. Five of these sites have tax holidays expiring from
December 2002 through December 2007. Two sites have not yet
incurred a profitable year, thus the expiration of the tax holiday
status for those sites has not yet been determined. The net impact
of these tax holidays was to decrease net loss by approximately
$37 million, or $0.05 per diluted share, in 2002 and approxi-
mately $58 million, or $0.08 per diluted share, in 2001.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash and cash equivalents decreased to $1.8 billion at August 31,
2002 from $2.5 billion at August 31, 2001. We also had

$135.7 million in restricted cash and cash equivalents. Our short-
term investments decreased to $232.5 million at August 31, 2002,
from $307.8 million at August 31, 2001. In addition, we had

$99.7 million of restricted short-term investments at August 31,
2002. Our restricted cash, cash equivalents and short-term invest-
ments are restricted primarily related to leasing transactions (see
further discussion in Note 8 to the consolidated financial state-
ments) and collateral for our obligations under the ACES securities
in an amount equal to the next five quarterly interest payments.

The decrease in cash and cash equivalents was primarily a result
of cash used in financing activities of approximately $1.9 billion. We
also used $893.6 million in investing activities primarily for capital
expenditures, business and asset acquisitions. The decrease was
partially offset by cash provided by operating activities of approxi-
mately $2.1 billion. Through our recent offering of ACES due 2006
and the 9.625% Senior Notes due 2009, we raised net proceeds of
approximately $1.1 billion and $486.8 million, respectively. We used
approximately $2.8 billion of our available cash towards repurchase
of approximately $2.9 billion of accreted value of our LYONs during
fiscal 2002. We also repaid other debt including C-MAC's outstand-
ing debt assumed upon acquisition of approximately $341 million.

Accounts receivable decreased to approximately $1.8 billion
at August 31, 2002 from approximately $2.4 billion at August 31,
2001. The decrease in accounts receivable was primarily due to
our revenue reduction and our collection efforts during fiscal 2002.
Inventories decreased to $1.9 billion at August 31, 2002 from



approximately $3.2 billion at August 31, 2001. The inventory decrease
was primarily due to the sale of excess raw materials inventory back
to customers and continued efforts on inventory management.

As of August 31, 2002, we had available a $250 million revolv-
ing line of credit that expires on February 12, 2003, and a $250 mil-
lion revolving line of credit that expires on February 14, 2005. Each
of our revolving lines of credit is guaranteed by certain of our
domestic subsidiaries and secured by the pledge of equity interest in
certain of our subsidiaries and notes evidencing intercompany debt.
Borrowings under the credit facilities bear interest, at our option, at
the London interbank offering rate (LIBOR) plus a margin of 1.75%
based on our current senior unsecured debt ratings, or the higher of
the Federal Funds Rate plus 2 of 1% or Bank of America N.A's
publicly announced prime rate. As of August 31, 2002, there were
no borrowings outstanding under these lines of credit. These credit
facilities are subject to compliance with certain covenants including
capital expenditures, consolidated tangible net worth, cash interest
coverage, liquidity and other restrictions. As of August 31, 2002, we
were in compliance with all such covenants.

On December 18, 2001, Moody's Investor's Service and
Standard & Poor's downgraded our senior unsecured debt rating to
‘Bal” and “BB+, respectively, with a negative outlook. On March 22,
2002, Standard and Poor's downgraded our senior unsecured debt
rating to “BB" with a negative outlook. On May 14, 2002, Moody's
Investors Services further downgraded our senior unsecured debt
rating to “Ba3” with a stable outlook. These rating downgrades will
increase our cost of capital should we borrow under our revolving
lines of credit, and may make it more expensive for us to raise addi-
tional capital in the future. Such capital raising activities may be on
terms that may not be acceptable to us or otherwise not available.

In addition, we had $34.9 million in committed and $443.6 million
in uncommitted foreign lines of credit and other bank facilities as of
August 31, 2002. A committed line of credit obligates a lender
to loan us amounts under the credit facility as long as we adhere to
the terms of the credit agreement. An uncommitted line of credit is
extended to us at the sole discretion of a lender. The interest rates
range from the bank’s prime lending rate to the bank’s prime rate
plus 2.0%. As of August 31, 2002, borrowings and guaranteed
amounts were $10.9 million and $128.3 million under committed
and uncommitted foreign lines of credit, respectively. Borrowings
were payable on demand. The weighted-average interest rate was
5.5% for committed and 2.5% for uncommitted foreign lines of
credit as of August 31, 2002.

We have purchased in the past and may continue to purchase
in the future our remaining LYONs on an opportunistic basis. In
addition, our liquidity could be adversely affected if we require
substantial amounts of cash in connection with our obligations to
purchase our LYONSs as they become due. Instead of repurchasing
the LYONSs with cash, we may elect to offer holders our common
stock or a combination of our cash and common stock. At the time
of such election, it may be in the best interest of our shareholders to
satisfy such obligation in cash, however, we may not have sufficient
cash available and we may not be able to finance the required
amount on acceptable terms if at all. As a result, we may be required
to satisfy such obligations with our common stock, which would be
extremely dilutive at our current stock prices. See “Risk Factors—Our
Obligations Under LYONs May Cause Dilution and Reduction of
Earnings Per Share! Based on the aggregate amount outstanding
on August 31, 2002, holders of our 2.75% LYONs due 2020 have
the option to require us to repurchase their notes in an amount of
$628.57 per $1,000 principal amount for a total of $535.9 million
on May 8, 2003. These 2.75% LYONs due 2020 are classified as

short-term debt as of August 31, 2002 in the accompanying consol-
idated balance sheet. Based on the aggregate amount outstanding
on August 31, 2002, holders of our 3.25% LYONs due 2020 have
the option to require us to repurchase their notes in an amount of
$587.46 per $1,000 principal amount for a total of approximately
$1.5 billion on May 20, 2004.

Our 725% subordinated ACES debentures are due November
15, 2006. On or about August 15, 2004, the ACES debentures will
be remarketed and if the remarketing is successful, the interest rate
will be reset at then current rates as described in the indentures and
the proceeds from the remarketing will be used to satisfy the hold-
ers’ obligation to purchase our common stock in November 2004. If
the debentures are not successfully remarketed, the interest rate will
not be reset and we may use the pledged debentures to satisfy the
holder's obligation to purchase our common stock in November
2004. In addition, our $500 million aggregate principal amount of
9.625% senior notes are due February 15, 2009.

During our fourth fiscal quarter ended August 31, 2002, we and
our subsidiaries restructured our synthetic lease agreements relating
to five manufacturing sites. The synthetic leases have expiration
dates in 2007. At the end of the lease term, we have an option,
subject to certain conditions, to purchase or to cause a third party
to purchase the facilities subject to the synthetic leases for the
“Termination Value; which approximates the lessor’s original cost, or
may market the property to a third party at a different price. We are
entitled to any proceeds from a sale of the properties to third parties
in excess of the Termination Value. In connection with our restructur-
ing of these synthetic leases, we and our subsidiaries provided loans
to the lessor under each synthetic lease, equaling approximately
85% of its initial Termination Value. These loans are repayable solely
from the sale of the properties to third parties in the future, are
subordinated to the amounts payable to the lessor at the end of
the terms of the synthetic leases, and may be credited against the
Termination Value payable if we or our subsidiaries purchase the
properties. The approximate maximum Termination Values and
loan amounts for each of the synthetic leases are provided below
(in millions).

Termination Value Loan Amount

A) Milpitas, CA for land $ 35.0 $ 208
B) Milpitas, CA for improvements 18.4 156.7
C) San Jose, CA 13.6 115
D) Columbia, SC 247 21.0
E) Fremont, CA 23.4 19.9
F) Fremont, CA 9.6 8.1

Total $124.7 $106.0

Cash collateral, in an aggregate amount of $18.7 million is pledged
for the difference between the Termination Values and the loan
amounts. Each lease agreement contains various affirmative and
financial covenants. A default under a lease, including violation

of these covenants, may accelerate the termination date of the
arrangement. As of August 31, 2002 we were in compliance with all
such covenants. Monthly lease payments are generally based on the
Termination Value and 30-day LIBOR index (1.82 % as of August
31, 2002) plus an interest-rate margin, which may vary depending
upon our Moody’s Investors’ Services, and Standard and Poor’s
ratings and are allocated between the lessor and us and our sub-
sidiaries based on the proportion of our loan amount to the total
Termination Value for each synthetic lease.



After the restructuring, we have continued to account for these
synthetic lease arrangements as operating leases in accordance
with SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases, as amended. Our loans
to the lessor are included in long-term other assets in our consoli-
dated balance sheet as of August 31, 2002. The cash collateral is
included in restricted cash and cash equivalents in the accompany-
ing consolidated balance sheet as of August 31, 2002. If we should
determine that it is probable that the expected fair value of the prop-
erty at the end of the lease term will be less than the Termination

Value, we will recognize any expected loss on a straight-line basis
over the remaining lease term.

We believe that our current cash and cash equivalents, short-
term investments, lines of credit and cash generated from opera-
tions will satisfy our expected working capital, capital expenditure,
debt service and investment requirements through at least the next
12 months.

The following is a summary of certain obligations and commit-
ments as of August 31, 2002:

Payments Due by Period (in millions) Total FYO3 FYO4 FYOb FY06 FYO7 Thereafter
Short term debt® $ 6517 $651.7 $ = $ - $ - $ = $ -
Long term debt® 3,266.4 = 16188 19.6 150.6 1,073.0 504.4
Operating lease 458.8 107.9 96.8 68.8 431 33.8 108.4
Standby letters of credit and guaranteed amounts® 88.1 829 4.8 = = 0.4 =

(1) Since the holders of our 2.75% LYONs due 2020 have the option to require us to repurchase their notes on May 8, 2003 in an amount of $628.57 per $1,000 principal amount at
maturity, the payment due amount here reflects a total of $535.9 million on such commitment date of May 8, 2003 based on the notes outstanding as of August 31, 2002.

(2) Since the holders of our 3.25% LYONs due 2020 have the option to require us to repurchase on May 20, 2004 their notes in an amount of $587.46 per $1,000 principal amount at
maturity, the payment due amount here reflects a total of approximately $1.5 billion on such commitment date of May 20, 2004 based on the notes outstanding as of August 31,
2002. In addition, the total amount above includes approximately $9 million of capital lease commitments.

(3) We guarantee lines of credit, provided by various financial institutions, for our operating subsidiaries worldwide. Lines of credit, used and unused, which we guarantee totaled
$468.6 million as of August 31, 2002. In addition, we guarantee other financial transactions, totaling $293.56 million as of August 31, 2002. These transactions include, among

others, certain real estate and equipment operating leases entered into by our subsidiaries.

In addition, we guarantee $60 million of debt and $88 million of
vendor contracts for our minority owned affiliate, Pacific City
International Holdings (PCI). The guarantee will expire during
December 2002.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations;
and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets! SFAS
No. 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used
for all business combinations initiated or completed after June 30,
2001. SFAS No. 141 also specifies the criteria intangible assets
acquired in a purchase method business combination must meet
to be recognized and reported apart from goodwill. SFAS No. 142
requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives no longer be amortized, but instead tested for impairment at
least annually. SFAS No. 142 also requires that intangible assets
with definite useful lives be amortized over their respective esti-
mated lives to their estimated residual values, and be reviewed

for impairment according to SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be
Disposed Of In accordance with SFAS No. 141, we are accounting
for all business combinations initiated or completed after June 30,
2001 using the purchase method of accounting. We adopted the
remaining provisions of SFAS No. 141 and SFAS No. 142 effective
September 1, 2001. See further discussion under “Restructuring
and Impairment Costs—Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” and
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets!

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations!” SFAS No. 143 requires that the fair
value of an asset retirement obligation be recorded as a liability in
the period in which it incurs the obligation. SFAS No. 143 is effec-
tive for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. We will adopt

SFAS No. 143 for our fiscal year beginning September 1, 2002 and
do not expect such adoption will have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets; which super-
sedes SFAS No. 121. The primary objectives of SFAS No. 144 are
to develop one accounting model based on the framework estab-
lished in SFAS No. 121 for long-lived assets to be disposed of by
sale, and to address significant implementation issues identified
after the issuance of SFAS No. 121. We will adopt SFAS No. 144
for our fiscal year beginning September 1, 2002. The adoption is
not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements.

In May 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of
FASB Statements Nos. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement
No.13 and Technical Corrections! SFAS No. 145 requires that cer-
tain gains and losses from extinguishments of debt no longer be
classified as an extraordinary item. SFAS No. 145 is effective for fis-
cal years beginning after May 15, 2002 (with accounting for certain
transactions effective May 15, 2002). We early adopted SFAS No.
145 and reclassified our gains on retirement of debt from extraordi-
nary to a separate line item within non-operating income (expense).

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities SFAS No. 146
requires that a liability for costs associated with an exit or disposal
activity be recognized and measured initially at fair value only when
the liability is incurred. SFAS No. 146 is effective for exit or disposal
activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002. We do not
expect adoption of SFAS No. 146 to have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.



Recent Developments

On June 11, 2002, we completed our acquisition of Magnetic Data
Technologies (MDT), a global provider of after-sales services for

the communications, computer and electronic storage markets for
$70 million in cash. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase
of a business.

On May 31, 2002, we announced the completion of a three-
year supply agreement to produce optical networking equipment for
Lucent. As part of the three-year supply agreement, we purchased
equipment and inventory related to Lucent's optical product lines for
approximately $99.4 million in cash. This acquisition was accounted
for as a purchase of assets. Subsequently, as a result of significant
changes in the marketplace and decreased demand, both parties
reached a mutual agreement in principle on October 21, 2002 to
unwind this supply agreement. We have agreed in principle with
Lucent to unwind the outsourcing and asset purchase transaction
involving Lucent's optical networking systems in Andover, Massa-
chusetts. We expect to enter into with Lucent a definitive agreement
to unwind the May 31, 2002 transaction in our first quarter of fiscal
2003. Under the general terms of the agreement in principle, Lucent
will repurchase the equipment and unused inventory that we acquired
in May 2002. We will continue to produce and support a portion of
Lucent's optical networking products through March of 2003. We do
not anticipate any losses on changes to this supply agreement.

Risk Factors

We are exposed to general economic conditions, which could have
a material adverse impact on our business, operating results and
financial condition.

As a result of unfavorable general economic conditions in the
U.S. and internationally, and reduced capital spending as well as
end-market demand, our sales have continued to decline in recent
fiscal quarters. We began to see a sales decline in the telecommuni-
cations, workstation and server equipment manufacturing industry
worldwide during the second half of fiscal 2001. In particular, we
depend on the telecommunications industry for a significant amount
of our revenues. Continued weakness in this industry or any further
deterioration in the business or financial condition of our customers
in this industry could have a material adverse impact on our busi-
ness, operating results and financial condition. In addition, if the
economic conditions in the United States and the other markets
we serve worsen, we may experience a material adverse impact
on our business, operating results and financial condition.

We have significant debt leverage and debt service obligations.
For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2002 our fixed charges
exceeded our earnings by $3.6 billion as compared to our ratio of
earnings to fixed charges of 0.23x for fiscal year 2001. The fixed
charge excess is primarily due to our operating losses and interest
expense growing at a greater rate since the second half of fiscal
2001 and during fiscal year 2002. We have computed the ratio of
earnings to fixed charges by dividing earnings available for fixed
charges by fixed charges. The computations include us and our
consolidated subsidiaries. For these ratios, “earnings” represents
(1) income (loss) before taxes and before adjustment for minority
interests, plus (2) fixed charges (excluding capitalized interest), plus
(3) amortization of capitalized interest. Fixed charges consist of
(1) interest on all indebtedness and amortization of debt discount
and expense, plus (2) capitalized interest, plus (3) an interest factor
attributable to rentals under operating leases.

As of August 31, 2002, we had approximately $643 million of
short-term indebtedness, including $527 million of current portion
of long-term indebtedness, and $3.2 billion of long-term indebted-
ness (which in the case of all Liquid Yield Option Notes were the
accreted values as of that date). We will require substantial amounts
of cash to fund scheduled payments of principal and interest on our
outstanding indebtedness, as well as future capital expenditures and
any increased working capital requirements. In addition, we may
require substantial amounts of cash in connection with our obliga-
tions to repurchase our LYONSs. In connection with our tender offer
for our 2.75% LYONs due 2020, which expired on July 19, 2002,
we purchased $1.5 billion aggregate principal amount at maturity of
these LYONs and $852 million aggregate principal amount at matu-
rity of these LYONs remained outstanding as of August 31, 2002.
Based on the aggregate amount outstanding on August 31, 2002,
on May 8, 2003, holders of our 2.75% LYONs due 2020 will have
the option to require us to repurchase their notes in an amount of
$628.57 per $1,000 principal amount for a total of up to approxi-
mately $535.9 million. Based on the aggregate amount outstanding
on August 31, 2002, on May 20, 2004, holders of our 3.25%
LYONs due 2020 will have the option to require us to repurchase
their notes in an amount of $587.46 per $1,000 principal amount
for a total of approximately $1.5 billion. Instead of repurchasing the
LYONs with cash, we may elect to offer holders our common stock
or a combination of our cash and common stock. At the time of such
election, it may be in the best interests of our shareholders to satisfy
such obligation in cash, however, we may not have sufficient cash
available and we may not be able to finance the required amount on
acceptable terms if at all. As a result, we may be required to satisfy
such obligations with our common stock, which would be extremely
dilutive at our current stock prices.

Our ability to meet our cash requirements depends on a number
of factors, many of which are beyond our control.

Our ability to meet our cash requirements (including our debt
service obligations) is dependent upon our future performance,
which will be subject to financial, business and other factors affect-
ing our operations, many of which are beyond our control. If we are
unable to meet our cash requirements from operations we would be
required to fund these cash requirements by alternative financings.
The degree to which we may be leveraged could materially and
adversely affect our ability to obtain financing for working capital,
acquisitions or other purposes, could make us more vulnerable to
industry downturns and competitive pressures, or could limit our flex-
ibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes and opportunities in the
electronics manufacturing industry, which may place us at a compet-
itive disadvantage compared to our competitors. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to obtain alternative financing, that
any such financing would be on acceptable terms, or that we will
be permitted to do so under the terms of our existing financing
arrangements. In the absence of such financing, our ability to respond
to changing business and economic conditions, make future acquisi-
tions, react to adverse operating results, meet our debt service obli-
gations or fund required capital expenditures or increased working
capital requirements may be adversely affected.

We may not be able to sell excess or obsolete inventory to cus-
tomers or otherwise which could have a material adverse impact
on our financial condition.

The majority of our inventory purchases and commitments are
based upon demand forecasts that our customers provide to us. The
customer forecast, and any changes to the forecasts, including can-
cellations, may lead to on hand inventory quantities and on order



purchase commitments that are in excess of the customer’s revised
needs, or that become obsolete.

We execute supply agreements with our most significant cus-
tomers in our Global Operations business unit, which accounts for a
majority of the inventory we purchase. Under the supply agreements,
the responsibility for excess or obsolete inventory related to raw
materials that were previously purchased or ordered to meet a cus-
tomer's demand forecast lies with the customer. If our customers
do not comply with their contractual obligations to purchase excess
or obsolete inventory back from us, our financial condition could
be materially harmed. In addition, enforcement of these supply
agreements may result in material expenses or delays in payment
for inventory.

We are solely responsible for excess and obsolete inventory
resulting from inventory purchases in excess of inventory needed to
meet customer demand forecasts at the time the purchase commit-
ments were made, as well as inventory purchases generally not
covered by our supply agreements or for inventory purchased for
customers with whom we have no supply agreements (as is gener-
ally the case for the customers in our Technology Solutions, Global
Services and MicroSystems business units). In these instances, since
we do not have the right to sell back excess or obsolete inventory to
our customers, we must bear the economic loss of any such excess
or obsolete inventory which could have a material adverse impact on
our financial condition. In the fourth quarter of 2002, we recorded a
charge of $97 million to reduce the carrying value of excess and
obsolete inventory. This charge resulted in a reduction in our gross
margin and included excess and obsolete inventory identified in our
product-oriented Technology Solutions and other business units.

The agreements governing our existing and future debt contain
and will contain various covenants that limit our discretion in the
operation of our business.

The agreements and instruments governing our existing and
future debt and our secured credit facilities contain and may, in the
future, contain various restrictive covenants that, among other things,
require us to comply with or maintain certain financial tests and
ratios thereby restricting our ability to:

« incur debt;

« incur or maintain liens;

- redeem and/or prepay subordinated debt;

+ make acquisitions of businesses or entities;

+ make investments, including loans, guarantees and advances;
- make capital expenditures;

- engage in mergers, consolidations or certain sales of assets;
- engage in transactions with affiliates;

« pay dividends or engage in stock redemptions; and

- enter into certain restrictive agreements.

Our secured credit facilities are secured by a pledge of all of the
capital stock of our material domestic subsidiaries, 65% of the capi-
tal stock of our first-tier material foreign subsidiaries and certain of
our intercompany loans.

Our ability to comply with covenants contained in our existing
debt and our secured credit facilities and other indebtedness to
which we are or may become a party may be affected by events
beyond our control, including prevailing economic, financial and
industry conditions. Our failure to comply with our debt-related
covenants could result in an acceleration of our indebtedness and
cross-defaults under our other indebtedness, which may have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition. Even if we are
able to comply with all applicable covenants, the restrictions on our
ability to operate our business could harm our business by, among

other things, limiting our ability to take advantage of financings,
mergers, acquisitions and other corporate opportunities.

In light of our recent financial performance, we amended our
credit facilities on June 18, 2002 in order to make them less
restrictive. We amended the liens, capital expenditures, consolidated
tangible net worth and cash interest coverage ratio covenants as
well as certain other terms of the credit facilities. We also added
a liquidity ratio covenant. These amendments were effective as of
May 31, 2002.

Most of our net sales come from a small number of customers;
if we lose any of these customers, our net sales could decline
significantly.

Most of our annual net sales come from a small number of our
customers. Our ten largest customers accounted for approximately
65%, 72%, and 74% of net sales in fiscal 2002, 2001, and 2000
respectively. Some of these customers individually account for more
than ten percent of our annual net sales. Any material delay, cancel-
lation or reduction of orders from these or other major customers
could cause our net sales to decline significantly, and we may not be
able to reduce the accompanying expenses at the same time. We
cannot guarantee that we will be able to retain any of our largest
customers or any other accounts, or that we will be able to realize
the expected revenues under existing supply agreements with
these customers. Our business, market share, financial condition
and results of operations will continue to depend significantly on
our ability to obtain orders from new customers, retain existing cus-
tomers, realize expected revenues under existing supply agreements,
as well as on the financial condition and success of our customers
and their customers. In addition to the above, some industry sources
have projected that our market share by revenues may decline in
the near term.

Net sales may decline in future periods due to the continued
weakness in customer demand, particularly in our telecommunica-
tions sector, resulting from the worldwide economic slowdown. In
addition, net sales may be adversely affected due to our unwinding
of the Lucent supply agreement which was expected to generate
$2 billion in revenues over the next three years.

Our customers may cancel their orders, change production
quantities or locations, or delay production.

Electronics manufacturing services (EMS) companies must
provide increasingly rapid product turnaround for their customers.
Although we have long-term contracts with a few of our top ten cus-
tomers, including Ericsson and Nortel, under which these customers
are obligated to obtain services from us, only Nortel is obligated to
purchase any minimum amount of services. As a result, we cannot
guarantee that we will receive any net sales from these contracts or
any of our other contracts with customers. Customers may cancel
their orders, change production quantities or delay production for a
number of reasons. Many of our customers’ industries are experi-
encing a significant decrease in demand for their products and serv-
ices. The generally uncertain economic condition of several of the
industries of our customers has resulted, and may continue to result,
in some of our customers delaying the purchase orders on some of
the products we manufacture for them, and placing purchase orders
for lower volumes of products than previously anticipated. Cancella-
tions, reductions or delays by a significant customer or by a group of
customers would seriously harm our results of operations by reduc-
ing the volumes of products manufactured by us for the customers
and delivered in that period, as well as causing a delay in the repay-
ment of our expenditures for inventory in preparation for customer
orders and lower asset utilization resulting in lower gross margins. In



addition, customers may require that manufacturing of their products
be transitioned from one facility to another to achieve cost and other
objectives. Such transfers, if unanticipated, can result in inefficien-
cies and costs due to resulting excess capacity and overhead at one
facility and capacity constraints and related strains on our resources
at the other.

Our strategic relationships with major customers create risks.

In the past couple of years, we have completed several strategic
transactions with OEM customers. Under these arrangements, we
generally acquire inventory, equipment and other assets from the
OEM, and lease (or in some cases acquire) their manufacturing
facilities, while simultaneously entering into multi-year supply agree-
ments for the production of their products. We intend to continue to
pursue these OEM divestiture transactions in the future. There is
strong competition among EMS companies for these transactions,
and this competition may increase. These transactions have con-
tributed to a significant portion of our past revenue growth, and if
we fail to complete similar transactions in the future, our revenue
could be harmed. As part of these arrangements, we typically enter
into manufacturing services agreements with these OEMs. These
agreements generally do not require any minimum volumes of pur-
chases by the OEM, and the actual volume of purchases may be
less than anticipated. The arrangements entered into with divesting
OEMs typically involve many risks, including the following:

+ we may pay a purchase price to the divesting OEMs that exceeds
the value we may realize from the future business of the OEM;

- the integration into our business of the acquired assets and facili-
ties may be time-consuming and costly;

« we, rather than the divesting OEM, bear the risk of excess capacity;

- we may not achieve anticipated cost reductions and efficiencies;

+ we may be unable to meet the expectations of the OEM as to
volume, product quality, timeliness and cost reductions; and

« if demand for the OEM's products declines, the OEM may reduce
its volume of purchases, and we may not be able to sufficiently
reduce the expenses of operating the facility or use the facility to
provide services to other OEMs.

As a result of these and other risks, we may be unable to achieve
anticipated levels of profitability under these arrangements, and
they may not result in any material revenues or contribute positively
to our earnings. Additionally, other OEMs may not wish to obtain
logistics or operations management services from us.

If we are unable to manage our acquisitions and cost effectively
assimilate new operations, our profitability could be adversely
affected.

We have experienced rapid growth over many years. Concurrently,
we have established operations in different locations throughout the
world. During fiscal 2002, we completed acquisitions of C-MAC and
MDT, among others. We intend to consider making acquisitions of
companies and strategic assets under our acquisition strategy sub-
ject to compliance with any restrictions that may exist under certain
of our financing instruments. These acquisitions may be for cash,
capital stock or any combination of cash and capital stock, or other
property, and may include the incurrence or assumption of indebted-
ness and a reduction of our available cash.

In order to achieve anticipated revenue and other financial per-
formance targets, we must manage our assets and operations effi-
ciently and integrate our acquisitions. Our acquisitions place a heavy
strain on our personnel and management, manufacturing and other
resources. Our ability to manage and integrate our acquisitions, as
well as any future acquisitions, will require progressive increases in

manufacturing infrastructure, as well as enhancements or upgrades
of accounting and other internal management systems and the
implementation of a variety of procedures and controls. We cannot
assure that significant problems in these areas will not occur. Any
failure to enhance or expand these systems and implement such
procedures and controls in an efficient manner and at a pace con-
sistent with our business activities could harm our financial condition
and results of operations. In addition, should we continue to expand
geographically, we may experience inefficiencies from the man-
agement of geographically dispersed facilities. As we manage and
continue to expand new operations, we may incur substantial infra-
structure and working capital costs. We incurred $615.5 million

of restructuring-related charges in fiscal 2002 and expect to incur
approximately $100 million of such charges over the next few quar-
ters. See the risk factor entitled “If we incur more restructuring-
related charges than currently anticipated, our financial condition
and results of operations may suffer’

Possible fluctuation of operating results from quarter to quarter

and factors out of our control could affect the market price of

our securities.

Our quarterly earnings and/or stock price may fluctuate in the
future due to a number of factors including the following:

- differences in the profitability of the types of manufacturing serv-
ices we provide. For example, high velocity and low complexity
printed circuit boards and systems assembly services have lower
gross margins than low volume/complex printed circuit boards and
systems assembly services;

« our ability to maximize the hours of use of our equipment and
facilities is dependent on the duration of the production run time
for each job and customer;

+ the amount of automation that we can use in the manufacturing
process for cost reduction varies, depending upon the complexity
of the product being made;

« our customers’ demand for our products, and their ability to take
delivery of our products and to make timely payments for
delivered products;

- our ability to optimize the ordering of inventory as to timing
and amount to avoid holding inventory in excess of immediate
production needs;

« our ability to offer technologically advanced cost-effective, quick
response, manufacturing services;

« fluctuations in demand for our services or the products being
manufactured;

« fluctuations in the availability and pricing of components;

- timing of expenditures in anticipation of increased sales;

« cyclicality in our target markets;

- expenses associated with acquisitions;

+ announcements of operating results and business conditions by
our customers;

+ announcements by our competitors relating to new customers or
technological innovation or new services;

- economic developments in the electronics industry as a whole;

- credit ratings downgrades may have a negative impact on our
stock price; and

- political and economic developments in countries in which we have
operations; and general market conditions.

If our operating results in the future are below the expectations of
securities analysts and investors, the market price of our outstanding
securities could be harmed.



If we incur more restructuring-related charges than currently antici-
pated, our financial condition and results of operations may suffer.
In furtherance of the implementation of the restructuring plan we
announced in fiscal 2001, we expect to incur restructuring-related
charges in the range of an aggregate of $100 million over the next
few quarters, although no certainty can be attributed to this amount or
the timing of its recognition. We continue to evaluate our cost struc-
ture relative to our revenue levels and may take additional restruc-
turing charges in the future. If we incur additional restructuring-related
charges, our financial condition and results of operations may suffer.

We depend on limited or sole source suppliers for critical compo-
nents. The inability to obtain sufficient components as required
would cause harm to our business.

We are dependent on certain suppliers, including limited and sole
source suppliers, to provide key components used in our products.
We have experienced, and may continue to experience, delays in
component deliveries, which in turn could cause delays in product
shipments and require the redesign of certain products. Also for
our Technology Solutions business unit, we are dependent upon cer-
tain limited or sole source suppliers for critical components used for
our memory module, communications card and embedded computer
products. The electronics industry has experienced in the past, and
may experience in the future, shortages in semiconductor devices,
including application-specific integrated circuits, DRAM, SRAM, flash
memory, certain passive devices such as tantalum capacitors, and
other commaodities that may be caused by such conditions as overall
market demand surges or supplier production capacity constraints.
The inability to continue to obtain sufficient components as required,
or to develop alternative sources as required, could cause delays,
disruptions or reductions in product shipments or require product
redesigns which could damage relationships with current or pro-
spective customers and increase inventory levels, thereby causing
harm to our business.

We potentially bear the risk of price increases associated with
shortages in the availability of electronics components.

At various times, there have been shortages of components in
the electronics industry leading to increased component prices. One
of the services that we perform for many customers is purchasing
electronics components used in the manufacturing of the customers'’
products. As a result of this service, we potentially bear the risk of
price increases for these components if we are unable to purchase
components at the pricing level anticipated to support the margins
assumed in our agreements with our customers.

Our net sales could decline if our competitors provide comparable
manufacturing services and improved products at a lower cost.

We compete with different contract manufacturers, depending on
the type of service we provide or the geographic locale of our oper-
ations. The memory module, communications card and embedded
computer subsystem industries are also intensely competitive. These
competitors may have greater manufacturing, financial, R&D and/or
marketing resources than we have. In addition, we may not be able
to offer prices as low as some of our competitors because those
competitors may have lower cost structures as a result of their geo-
graphic location or the services they provide. Our inability to provide
comparable or better manufacturing services at a lower cost than
our competitors could cause our net sales to decline. We also expect
our competitors to continue to improve the performance of their cur-
rent products or services, to reduce their current products or service
sales prices and to introduce new products or services that may
offer greater value-added performance and improved pricing. Any of

these could cause a decline in sales, loss of market acceptance of
our products or services, or profit margin compression.

We depend on the continuing trend of OEMs to outsource.

A substantial factor in our past revenue growth was attributable
to the transfer of manufacturing and supply based management
activities from our OEM customers. Future growth is partially
dependent on new outsourcing opportunities. To the extent that
these opportunities are not available, our future growth would be
unfavorably impacted.

Our non-U.S. locations represent a significant and growing portion
of our net sales; we are increasingly exposed to risks associated
with operating internationally.

In fiscal 2002, approximately 61% of net sales came from sites
outside the United States, while approximately 51% of net sales
came from sites outside the United States in fiscal 2001. As a result
of our foreign sales and facilities, our operations are subject to a
variety of risks that are unique to international operations, including
the following:

- adverse movement of foreign currencies against the U.S. dollar
in which our results are reported;

« import and export duties, and value added taxes;

- import and export regulation changes that could erode our profit
margins or restrict exports;

« potential restrictions on the transfer of funds;

- disruption of local labor supply;

- inflexible employee contracts in the event of business downturns;

« the burden and cost of compliance with foreign laws;

- economic and political risks in emerging or developing
economies; and

- exposure to increased inefficiency as a result of a work stoppage
caused by a labor dispute between dockworkers and shipping
companies.

We have been granted tax holidays, which are effective through
2011, subject to some conditions, for our Malaysian and Singapore
sites. We have also been granted various tax holidays in China.
These tax holidays are effective for various terms and are subject to
some conditions. It is possible that the current tax holidays will be
terminated or modified or that future tax holidays that we may seek
will not be granted. If the current tax holidays are terminated or
modified, if additional tax holidays are not granted in the future or
when our current tax holidays expire, our effective income tax rate
would likely increase.

We are exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

We enter into foreign exchange forward contracts intended to
reduce the short-term impact of foreign currency fluctuations on
foreign currency receivables, investments and payables. The gains
and losses on the foreign exchange forward contracts offset the
transaction gains and losses on the foreign currency receivables,
investments, and payables recognized in earnings. We do not enter
into foreign exchange forward contracts for speculative purposes.
Our foreign exchange forward contracts related to current assets
and liabilities are generally three months or less in original maturity.

We periodically hedge foreign currency forecasted transactions
related to certain operating expenses with foreign exchange forward
contracts. These transactions are treated as cash flow hedges. These
foreign exchange forward contracts generally have original maturi-
ties of 18 months or less.

As of August 31, 2002, we had outstanding foreign exchange
forward contracts with a total notional amount of approximately
$580 million. The change in value of the foreign exchange forward



contracts resulting from a hypothetical 10% change in foreign
exchange rates would be offset by the remeasurement of the
related balance sheet items. The net result would not be significant.
As of August 31, 2002, the majority of our foreign currency
hedging contracts were scheduled to mature in approximately three
months and there were no material deferred gains or losses. In addi-
tion, our international operations in some instances act as a natural
hedge because both operating expenses and a portion of sales
are denominated in local currency. In these instances, although an
unfavorable change in the exchange rate of a foreign currency
against the U.S. dollar will result in lower sales when translated to
U.S. dollars, operating expenses will also be lower in these circum-
stances. Although approximately 22% of our net sales in fiscal 2002
were denominated in currencies other than U.S. dollar, we do not
believe our total exposure to be significant because of natural hedges.
We have currency exposure arising from both sales and pur-
chases denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of our sites. Fluctuations in the rate of exchange between the cur-
rency of the exposure and the functional currency of our sites could
seriously harm our business, operating results and financial condi-
tion. For example, if there is an increase in the rate at which a for-
eign currency is exchanged for U.S. dollars, it will require more of
the foreign currency to equal a specified amount of U.S. dollars than
before the rate increase. In such cases, and if we price our products
and services in the foreign currency, we will receive less in U.S. dol-
lars than we did before the rate increase went into effect. If we price
our products and services in U.S. dollars and competitors price their
products in local currency, an increase in the relative strength of the
U.S. dollar could result in our prices being uncompetitive in markets
where business is transacted in the local currency.

We are exposed to interest rate fluctuations.

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve
principal, while at the same time, maximize yields without signifi-
cantly increasing risk. To achieve this objective, we maintain our
portfolio of cash equivalents and short-term investments in a variety
of securities, including both government and corporate obligations,
certificates of deposit and money market funds. As of August 31,
2002, approximately 91% of our total portfolio was scheduled to
mature in less than six months. In addition, our investments are
diversified and of relatively short maturity. A hypothetical 10%
increase in interest rates would not have a material effect on our
investment portfolios.

We had $536.8 million of cash equivalents and short-term
investments that are subject to interest rate risk as of August 31,
2002. The weighted average interest rate of these balances as of
August 31, 2002 was 2.08%. The fair value of these cash equiva-
lents and short-term investments totaled approximately $537 million
as of August 31, 2002.

Interest on long-term debt instruments is payable at fixed rates.
In addition, the amount of principal to be repaid at maturity is also
fixed. During the quarter ended May 31, 2002, we entered into
interest rate swap transactions under which we pay variable rates
and we receive fixed rates. The interest swaps effectively convert
$1 billion of our long-term debt with a fixed interest rate into debt
with a variable rate of interest. Our interest rate swaps have a total
notional amount of $1 billion as of August 31, 2002. The first $500
million relates to our 7.25% $1.1 billion ACES and expires on
November 15, 2004. The second $500 million relates to the 9.625%
$500 million senior notes and expires on February 15, 2009. Under
each of these swap transactions, we pay an interest rate equal to
the 3-month LIBOR rate plus a fixed spread. As of August 31, 2002,

the interest rates we paid were 5.0% for the first $500 million and
6.1% for the second $500 million. In exchange, we receive fixed
interest rates of 7.25% on the first $500 million and 9.625% on the
second $500 million. Since our investment portfolio earns variable
interest rates, the interest rate swaps allow us to partially offset the
variable rate risk from the investment portfolio. We may increase our
variable-rate exposure if there were to be material borrowings under
our revolving lines of credit.

We may not be able to adequately protect or enforce our intellec-
tual property rights.

Our ability to effectively compete may be affected by our ability
to protect our proprietary information. We hold a number of patents
and other license rights. These patents and license rights may not
provide meaningful protection for our manufacturing processes
and equipment innovations, which could result in litigation. Any
resulting litigation could be lengthy and costly and could harm
our financial condition.

We could become involved in intellectual property disputes.

In the past we have been and may from time to time continue to
be notified of claims that we may be infringing patents, copyrights or
other intellectual property rights owned by other parties. In the event
of an infringement claim, we may be required to spend a significant
amount of money to develop a non-infringing alternative or to obtain
licenses. Solectron may not be successful in developing such an
alternative or obtaining a license on reasonable terms, if at all. Any
litigation, even without merit, could result in substantial costs and
diversion of resources and could have a material adverse effect on
Solectron's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Failure to comply with environmental regulations could harm
our business.

As a company in the electronics manufacturing services industry,
we are subject to a variety of environmental regulations relating to
the use, storage, discharge and disposal of hazardous chemicals
used during our manufacturing process. Although we have never
sustained any significant loss as a result of non-compliance with
such regulations, any failure by us to comply with environmental
laws and regulations could result in liabilities or the suspension of
production. In addition, these laws and regulations could restrict our
ability to expand our facilities or require us to acquire costly equip-
ment or incur other significant costs to comply with regulations. The
addition of numerous production and manufacturing service facilities
as a result of our recent combination with C-MAC could generate
additional risks that we have yet been unable to evaluate fully.

The investigations of the C-MAC facilities to date indicate that
there are some contaminated sites for which C-MAC has been
indemnified by third parties for any required remediation, sites for
which there is a risk of the presence of contamination, and sites
with some levels of contamination for which C-MAC may be liable
and which may or may not ultimately require any remediation. We
have obtained environmental insurance to mitigate certain envi-
ronmental liabilities posed by C-MAC's operations and facilities.

We believe, based on our current knowledge, that the cost of any
groundwater or soil clean-up that may be required at C-MAC facili-
ties would not materially harm our business, financial condition and
results of operations. Nevertheless, the process of remediating
contamination in soil and groundwater at the facilities is costly and
cannot be estimated with high levels of confidence, and there can
be no assurance that the costs of such activities would not harm our
business, financial condition and results of operations in the future.



Our rating downgrades make it more expensive for us to
borrow money.

On December 18, 2001 Moody's Investor's Service and
Standard & Poor's downgraded our senior unsecured debt rating
to “Bal1” and “BB+) respectively, both with negative outlooks. On
March 22, 2002, Standard and Poor’'s downgraded our senior unse-
cured debt rating to “BB” with a negative outlook. On May 14, 2002,
Moody's Investor Services further downgraded our senior unsecured
debt rating to “Ba3” with a stable outlook. These rating downgrades
will increase our cost of capital should we borrow under our revolving
lines of credit, and may make it more expensive for us to raise addi-
tional capital in the future on terms that are acceptable to us or at
all. In addition, any further ratings downgrades may further negatively
impact the price of our common stock and may have other negative
implications on our business, many of which are beyond our control.

Our obligations under LYONs may cause dilution and reduction
of earnings per share.

On May 8, 2003, we may become obligated to purchase, at
the option of the holders, all or a portion of the outstanding 2.75%
LYONSs at a price of $628.57 per note. On May 20, 2004 we may
become obligated to purchase, at the option of the holders, all or a
portion of the outstanding 3.25% LYONSs at a price of $587.46 per
note. We have the option to pay the purchase price of LYONs in
cash or common stock or any combination thereof. At the time of
such election, it may be in the best interests of our shareholders to
satisfy such obligation in cash, however, we may not have sufficient
cash available and we may not be able to finance the required
amounts on acceptable terms, if at all. As a result, we may be
required to satisfy such obligations with our common stock. If we
elect to pay the purchase price, in whole or part, in shares of our
common stock, the number of shares of common stock to be deliv-
ered shall equal the purchase price divided by the average of the
sale prices of the common stock for the five trading day period
ending on the third business day prior to May 8, 2003 or May 20,
2004, as the case may be. On each respective repurchase date the
2.76% LYONSs or the 3.25% LYONSs are convertible into common
stock at a price of $560.98 per share or 12.3309 shares per LYON
in the case of the 2.75% LYONSs or at a price of $49.84 per share
or 11.7862 shares per LYON, in the case of the 3.25% LYONSs. In
the event that our stock price remains below $50.98 per share at
May 8, 2003 or below $49.84 per share at May 20, 2004, as the
case may be, we may have to issue a significant amount of addi-
tional shares to such holders. Accordingly, our existing stockholders
could experience significant dilution and our earnings per share may
be significantly reduced.

Failure to attract and retain key personnel and skilled associates
could hurt our operations.

Our continued success depends to a large extent upon the efforts
and abilities of key managerial and technical associates. Losing the
services of key personnel could harm us. Our business also depends
upon our ability to continue to attract and retain senior managers
and skilled associates. Failure to do so could harm our operations.

Our anti-takeover defense provisions may deter potential acquirors
and may depress our stock price.

Our certificate of incorporation, bylaws and stockholder rights
plan contain provisions that could have the effect of making it more
difficult for a third party to acquire, or of discouraging a third party
from attempting to acquire, control of Solectron. These provisions
allow us to issue preferred stock with rights senior to those of our
common stock and impose various procedural and other require-
ments that could make it more difficult for our stockholders to effect
certain corporate actions.



Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of August 31,

(in millions)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Restricted short-term investments
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $86.7 and $40.8, respectively
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets
Net property and equipment
Goodwill
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Short-term debt

Accounts payable

Accrued employee compensation

Accrued expenses

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 1.2 shares authorized; one share issued
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 1,600.0 shares authorized; 824.8 and 658.2 shares issued
and outstanding, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)
Accumulated other comprehensive losses

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2002 2001
$ 1,781.9 $ 24823
135.7 -
232.5 307.8
99.7 -
1,788.2 04436
1,870.0 3,209.9
752.0 410.0
6,660.0 8,853.6
1,173.0 1,304.7
2,163.9 1,987.2
1,017.1 934.4
$11,014.0 $13,079.9
$ 643.0 $ 3062
1,609.5 1,786.1
218.5 166.5
527.3 363.7
106.9 216.3
3,005.2 28388
3,183.9 5,027.5
52.2 62.9

$ 6,241.3 $ 7,929.2
$ = $ =
0.8 0.7
6,635.9 3,877.6
(1,578.6) 156316
(285.4) (259.9)
4,772.7 5,150.7
$11,014.0 $13,079.9




Consolidated Statements

Years ended August 31,

(in millions, except per-share data)
Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Research and development
Goodwill amortization expense
Acquisition costs
Restructuring and impairment costs

Operating income (loss)
Interest income
Interest expense
Gain on retirement of debt

Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle

Income tax expense (benefit)

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle for start-up costs, net of
$1.6 income tax benefit

Net income (loss)

Basic net income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Diluted net income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Shares used to compute net income (loss) per share:
Basic

Diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

of Operations

2002 2001 2000
$12,276.2 $18,692.3 $14,1375
11,546.2 17,206.2 12,862.2
730.0 1,486.1 1,275.3
827.7 8279 4671
74.8 69.9 60.8

- 1399 b.3

- 29.7 26.8

3,306.7 h17.3 111
(3,479.2) (98.6) 704.9
70.1 116.9 106.9
(244.1) (176.0) (71.6)
75.7 — —
(3,577.5) (187.7) 7395
(467.3) (34.9) 238.8
(3,110.2) (123.5) 500.7
- = (3.5)

$ (3,110.2) $ (123.56) $ 49792
$ (398 $ (019) $ 084
- = (0.01)

$ (3.98) $ (0.19) $ 0.83
$ (3.98) $ (019 $ 0.80
$ (3.98) $ (0.19) $ 0.80
780.9 641.8 599.4
780.9 641.8 623.6



Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Retained Accumulated
Additional Earnings Other Total
Common Stock Paid-In  (Accumulated ~ Comprehensive  Stockholders'
(in millions) Shares Amount Capital Deficit) Losses Equity
Balances as of August 31, 1999 594.1 $06 $2,081.4 $ 1,172.8 $ (87.9) $3,166.9
Net income 497.2 497.2
Adjustment to conform fiscal year ends of
pooled acquisitions 11.8) 11.8)
Foreign currency translation (32.8) (32.8)
Unrealized gain on investments 6.3 6.3
Stock issued under stock option and employee
purchase plans 10.3 109.0 109.0
Stock issued in business combinations 0.2 6.4 6.4
Cancellation of shares (9.0) (9.0)
Issuance of common stock 0.4 11.2 11.2
Dividends (1.4) (1.4)
Tax benefit associated with exercise of
stock options 60.1 60.1
Balances as of August 31, 2000 605.0 0.6 2,959.1 1,656.8 (114.4) 3,802.1
Net loss (123.6) (123.6)
Adjustment to conform Texas site year end (1.7) (1.7)
Foreign currency translation (139.8) (139.8)
Unrealized loss on investments (5.0) (5.0)
Stock issued under stock option and employee
purchase plans 8.6 97.7 97.7
Stock and stock options issued in business
combinations 2.5 69.8 69.8
Issuance of common stock 491 0.1 1,410.5 1,410.6
Tax benefit associated with exercise of
stock options 40.5 40.5
Balances as of August 31, 2001 658.2 0.7 3,877.6 1,631.6 (259.2) 5,1560.7
Net loss (3,110.2) (3,110.2)
Foreign currency translation (36.3) (36.3)
Unrealized gain on investments 10.1 10.1
Stock issued under stock option and employee
purchase plans 6.7 388 38.8
Stock and stock options issued in business
combinations 160.4 0.1 2,676.1 2,676.2
Repurchase of common stock (0.6) (4.5) (4.5)
ACES stock purchase contracts 46.9 46.9
Deferred stock-based compensation from
business combination (7.2) (7.9)
Amortization of stock-based deferred
compensation 4.6 4.6
Tax benefit associated with exercise of
stock options 3.6 3.6
Balances as of August 31, 2002 824.8 $0.8 $6,635.9 $(1,578.6) $(285.4) $4,772.7

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Years ended August 31,
(in millions) 2002 2001 2000
Net income (loss) $(3,110.2) $(123.5) $497.2
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustments net of income tax benefit of $6.3 in 2002,

tax expense of $13.5 in 2001, income tax benefit of $156.9 in 2000 (36.3) (139.8) (32.8)
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments net of income tax expense of $0.1 in 2002,

net of income tax benefit of $3.1 in 2001, and income tax expense of $3.8 in 2000 10.1 (5.0) 6.3

Comprehensive income (loss) $(3,136.4) $(268.3) $470.7

Accumulated foreign currency translation losses were $295.7 million at August 31, 2002, $259.4 million at August 31, 2001 and

$119.6 million at August 31, 2000. For fiscal year 2001, the foreign currency transaction loss primarily resulted from unrealized losses on
dollar-denominated long-term intercompany debt held by the Company's Brazilian subsidiary. Most of Solectron’s remaining foreign currency
translation adjustments relate to translation of foreign subsidiaries’ financial statements that use the local currency as the functional currency.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended August 31,

(in millions)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of debt issuance costs and accretion of discount on notes payable

Tax benefit associated with exercise of stock options
Gain on retirement of debt
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle for start-up costs
Adjustment to conform fiscal year ends
Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Impairment of property, equipment, goodwill and other long-term assets
Other
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Change in restricted cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments
Sales and maturities of short-term investments
Purchases of short-term investments
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired
Acquisition of manufacturing assets and locations
Capital expenditures
Purchase of facilities previously under synthetic leases
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Other

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from (repayment of) bank lines of credit
Proceeds from issuance of ACES and Senior Notes
Net proceeds from long-term debt
Repurchase of LYONS
Principal payments on long-term debt
Common stock repurchase
Net proceeds from stock issued under option and employee purchase plans
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock
Dividends
Other

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Cash paid (received) during the period:
Income taxes
Interest
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Issuance of common stock for business combination, net of cash acquired

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2002 2001 2000
$(3,110.2) $ (1235) $ 4972
376.8 536.1 951.4
137.5 1465 525
3.6 405 60.1
(75.7) = —

= - 35

- .7 11.8)

(1.9) (10.0) 8.7)
3,062.0 268.1 -
7.9 74.2 209
1,036.1 52.4 (934.1)
1,711.7 1,024.1 (2,096.0)
(514.3) (81.0) (102.9)
(438.9) (1,287.7) 1,710.7
(65.3) (10.4) 2145
2,129.3 627.6 (342.7)
(235.4) — —
667.9 1,354.3 9820
(589.9) (702.0) (1,498.6)
(296.3) (2,458.7) (83.7)
(102.2) (84.0) (1,014.2)
(241.8) (536.8) (506.0)
(179.3) — —
120.8 98.7 889
(46.4) (149.9) (35.1)
(893.6) (2,478.4) (2,066.7)
(197.4) (52.3) 16.9
1,553.8 = —
153.4 1,540.7 2206.3
(2,835.9) = =
(606.6) (18.3) 0.8)
(4.5) — —
38.8 97.7 109.0

- 1,381.4 112

= = (1.4)

(17.3) 20.6 428
(1,915.7) 2,069.8 24740
(20.4) (112.9) (6.5)
(700.4) 1,006.8 58.1
2,482.3 1,4755 1,417.4
$1,781.9 $2482.3 $ 14755
$  (72.1) $ 1514 $ 1357
$ 709 $ 110 $ 176
$2,528.8 $ 617 $ 64



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies
BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of Solectron Corporation and its subsidiaries after elimina-
tion of intercompany accounts and transactions.

YEAR END

Solectron’s financial reporting year ends on the last Friday in
August. Fiscal years 2002 and 2000 contained 52 weeks. Fiscal
year 2001 contained 53 weeks. For purposes of presentation in
the accompanying financial statements and notes, Solectron has
indicated its accounting years as ending on August 31.

Solectron’s subsidiaries, Solectron Brasil Ltda. and C-MAC
de Brazil Ltda. report their results one month in arrears. Solectron’s
consolidated financial position as of August 31, 2002 and 2001,
include the financial position of both Brazil operations as of July 31,
2002 and Solectron Brasil Ltda. as of July 31, 2001. Similarly,
Solectron’s consolidated results of operations and cash flows for the
year ended August 31, 2002 includes the results of operations and
cash flows of Solectron Brasil Ltda. for the year ended July 31,
2002 and C-MAC de Brazil Ltda. for the period from acquisition
through July 31, 2002. Solectron’s consolidated results of opera-
tions and cash flows for the years ended August 31, 2001 and

2000 include the results of operations and cash flows of Brasil Ltda.

for the years ended July 31, 2001 and 2000.

Solectron’s subsidiary in Austin, Texas reported its results one
month in arrears during fiscal 2000. Solectron’s consolidated results
of operations and cash flows for the year ended August 31, 2000
include the results of operations and cash flows of the Austin
subsidiary for the year ended July 31, 2000. The Austin subsidiary
changed its fiscal year end to conform to the consolidated com-
pany beginning in 2001. Retained earnings were adjusted to reflect
this change.

POOLING OF INTERESTS

On November 30, 1999, Solectron completed its acquisition of
SMART Modular Technologies (SMART). Under the terms of the
agreement, each share of SMART common stock was exchanged
for 0.61 of a share of Solectron common stock. Solectron issued
approximately 47.6 million shares of Solectron common stock for
the outstanding common stock of SMART and assumed all stock
options held by SMART employees. The acquisition was accounted
for as a pooling of interests. Accordingly, Solectron’s historical finan-
cial statements have been restated retroactively to include the
financial results of SMART. Due to different year ends, the results of
operations for the two-month period ended October 31, 1999 for
SMART have been included in the fiscal 1999 and fiscal 2000 con-
solidated statements of operations, and such results have been
adjusted for in retained earnings. SMART changed its fiscal year
end to coincide with Solectron’s beginning in fiscal 2000.

On April 28, 2000, Solectron completed its acquisition of
AMERICOM Wireless Services (AMERICOM), a privately held
corporation. Solectron issued approximately 1.8 million shares of
its common stock in exchange for all outstanding common stock of
AMERICOM and to extinguish obligations under the stock apprecia-
tion rights plan of AMERICOM. On July 14, 2000, Solectron com-
pleted the acquisition of Bluegum Group (Bluegum), an electronics
contract manufacturer in Australia. Solectron issued approximately
2.3 million shares of its common stock in exchange for all outstand-
ing common shares and stock options of Bluegum. Both trans-
actions were accounted for as a pooling of interests. Accordingly,
Solectron’s historical financial statements have been restated
retroactively to include the financial results of AMERICOM and
Bluegum. Both AMERICOM and Bluegum had fiscal years different
than Solectron’s. AMERICOM's fiscal year was from January 1 to
December 31 and Bluegum's was from July 1 to June 30. Both
AMERICOM and Bluegum changed their fiscal year ends to coin-
cide with Solectron’s beginning in fiscal 2000. Retained earnings
have been adjusted to conform their year ends with Solectron’s.

Restated financial information includes certain adjustments for
the elimination of net sales and cost of sales related to shipments
by Solectron to Bluegum, shipments by SMART to Solectron, as well
as for certain reclassifications made to SMART'’s, AMERICOM'’s and
Bluegum'’s financial statements to conform with Solectron’s financial
statement presentation. There were no adjustments necessary to
conform the accounting policies of the combining companies.

The results of operations previously reported by the separate
enterprises and the combined amounts presented in the accompa-
nying consolidated financial statements are summarized below for
the fiscal year ended August 31, 2000 (in millions):

Net sales
Solectron $13,786.5
SMART* 280.4
AMERICOM® 531
Bluegum® 156.1
Eliminations (139.0)
$14,137.5
Net income
Solectron $ 4970
SMART* 122
AMERICOM* (2.8)
Bluegum* (84)
Eliminations 0.8)
$ 4972

‘represents the net sales and net income (loss) for each of the separate companies prior
to the consummation of the acquisitions. The acquisitions were consummated as follows:
SMART on November 30, 1999, AMERICOM on April 28, 2000 and Bluegum on

July 14, 2000. Results subsequent to the acquisition were included with Solectron.



USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial state-
ments and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments purchased with an
original maturity at the date of purchase of less than three months.
Short-term investments are investment grade short-term debt instru-
ments with original maturities greater than three months. These
debt securities are classified as available-for-sale securities. Such
investments are recorded at fair value as determined from quoted
market prices, and the cost of securities sold is determined based
on the specific identification method. Unrealized gains or losses are
reported as a component of comprehensive income or loss, net of
related tax effect.

RESTRICTED CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

These assets are carried at fair values and are restricted as collat-
eral for specified obligations under certain lease agreements and
certain interest payments on the 7.25% subordinated ACES deben-
tures due November 15, 2006.

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

Solectron evaluates the collectibility of accounts receivable based on
a combination of factors. In cases where Solectron is aware of cir-
cumstances that may impair a specific customer’s ability to meet its
financial obligations, Solectron records a specific allowance against
amounts due, and thereby reduces the net recognized receivable to
the amount management reasonably believes will be collected. For
all other customers, Solectron recognizes allowances for doubtful
accounts based on the length of time the receivables are outstand-
ing, industry and geographic concentrations, the current business
environment and historical experience.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of weighted-average cost
or market.

The majority of Solectron’s inventory purchase commitments
are based upon demand forecasts that customers provide to the
Company. Customers frequently make changes to their forecasts,
thereby often requiring that Solectron make changes to inventory
purchases, commitments, and production scheduling and may require
Solectron to cancel open purchase commitments with vendors. This
process may lead to on-hand inventory quantities and on-order pur-
chase commitments that are in excess of the customer’s revised
needs, or parts that become obsolete before use in production.

Solectron executes supply agreements with their most significant
customers in the Global Operations business unit. Under these sup-
ply agreements, the responsibility for excess or obsolete inventory
related to raw materials that were purchased or ordered to meet
customers’ demand forecasts lies with the customers. However,
Solectron is responsible for excess and obsolete inventory resulting
from inventory purchases in excess of inventory needed to meet
customer demand forecasts at the time the purchase commitments
are made, as well as inventory purchases generally not covered by
the supply agreements with customers or for inventory purchases
for customers with whom no supply agreement exists (as is gener-
ally the case in the business units other than Global Operations).

Each supply agreement specifies the agreed-upon definition of
excess and obsolete inventory and the procedures for disposition
including Solectron’s right to sell the inventory back to the customer.
The supply agreements generally allow a period of time during which
Solectron and their customers work together to reduce or eliminate
the amount of potentially excess and obsolete inventory. After the
expiration of the specified time periods, Solectron may exercise their
contractual right to sell the remaining excess and obsolete inventory
back to the customer.

Solectron does not provide inventory reserves for excess and
obsolete inventory when (i) the supply agreement provides the
Company with the contractual right to sell inventory that is consid-
ered excess or obsolete back to its customers, and (ii) Solectron
believes the customer is capable of honoring its contractual obliga-
tion to purchase the inventory. In fiscal 2002, several customers,
including customers who accounted for 10% or more of fiscal 2002
revenue, were in the telecommunications industry, an industry that
has experienced declining revenue, large losses, negative cash
flows, and several bankruptcies or defaults on borrowing arrange-
ments. During fiscal 2002, no material customer informed Solectron
that it would be unable to honor its contractual obligation to purchase
excess or obsolete inventory from Solectron.

For Solectron’s Global Operations business unit, inventory
reserves are recorded for excess and obsolete inventory which
Solectron has determined that customers are not responsible for
or for which Solectron believes they are unable to live up to their
obligation to purchase such inventory from Solectron. For the other
business units, Solectron makes judgments with respect to record-
ing inventory reserves based on various factors such as the aging
and anticipated future demand of the inventory as Solectron
generally does not have the right to require customers to purchase
excess or obsolete inventory.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation and
amortization are computed based on the shorter of the estimated
useful lives or the related lease terms, using the straight-line
method. Estimated useful lives are presented below.

Machinery, equipment and computer software 2-7 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years
Leasehold improvements estimated life or lease term
Buildings 15-560 years

Certain depreciation lives were changed from four to five years
beginning March 2, 2001. Consequently, the pre-tax depreciation
charges on these assets were lower by $19.8 million in fiscal 2001
than it would have been using a four-year life.



OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist primarily of intangible assets other than good-
will including supply agreements and intellectual property obtained
in asset purchase transactions. Intangible assets are amortized using
the straight-line method over the expected life of the asset.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

Solectron reviews property and equipment for impairment when-
ever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Solectron performs
quarterly impairment tests for intangible assets other than goodwill.
An asset is considered impaired if its carrying amount exceeds the
future net undiscounted cash flows that the asset is expected to
generate. If such asset is considered to be impaired, the impairment
to be recognized is the amount by which the carrying amount of the
asset, if any, exceeds its fair value determined using a discounted
cash flow model.

INCOME TAXES

Solectron uses the asset and liability method of accounting for
income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
the future consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases. When necessary, a valuation allowance
is recorded to reduce tax assets to an amount for which realization
is more likely than not. The effect of changes in tax rates is recog-
nized in the period in which the rate change occurs.

NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic net income (loss) per share is calculated using the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted net income (loss) per share is calculated using the weighted-
average number of common shares plus dilutive potential common
shares outstanding during the period. Anti-dilutive potential common
shares are excluded. Potential common shares consist of stock
options that are computed using the treasury stock method and shares
issuable upon conversion of Solectron’s outstanding convertible debt
computed using the as-if-converted method. Share and per-share
data presented reflect all stock splits.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Solectron’s net sales are primarily derived from full product manu-
facturing services including, but not limited to, printed circuit board,
sub-system and complete system assembly, and manufacturing of
memory products and embedded systems. Solectron also offers
services consisting of repair, warranty and end-customer technical
support services including call centers. Revenue from manufactur-
ing services is recognized upon shipment of the manufactured
product. Revenue from other services is recognized as the services
are performed.

EMPLOYEE STOCK PLANS

Compensation costs attributable to Solectron’s stock option plans
and its employee stock purchase plan are recognized based on
any excess of the quoted market price of the stock on the date of
grant over the amount the employee is required to pay to acquire
the stock, in accordance with the intrinsic-value method under

Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25. Such amount, if any, is
accrued over the related time-based vesting period, as appropriate.
In accordance with SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation; the Company makes pro forma disclosures of net
income (loss) as if the fair-value based method of accounting has
been applied.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

For foreign subsidiaries using the local currency as their functional
currency, assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates in
effect at the balance sheet date and income and expenses are
translated at average exchange rates. In addition, Solectron records
adjustments to remeasure dollar denominated loans to subsidiaries
that are permanent in nature. The effects of these adjustments are
reported in other comprehensive income (loss) (“OCI"). Exchange
gains and losses arising from transactions denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity involved
and remeasurement adjustments for foreign operations where the
U.S. dollar is the functional currency are included in income (loss).
To date, the effects of such transaction gains and losses and
remeasurement adjustments on Solectron’s operations have not
been material.

COST OF START-UP ACTIVITIES

Solectron adopted American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’
Statement of Position No. 98-5, “Reporting on the Costs of Start-up
Activities] on September 1, 1999. This statement required that
costs of start-up activities and organizational costs be expensed as
incurred. The cumulative effect of this accounting change on years
prior to fiscal 2000 was a charge of $3.5 million (net of $1.6 million
income tax effect), or $0.01 per common share, that was reflected
in the first quarter of fiscal 2000.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

In September 2000, Solectron adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended by
SFAS No. 137 and No. 138. All derivative instruments are recorded
on the balance sheet at fair value. If the derivative is designated as a
cash flow hedge, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of
the derivative is recorded in OCI and is recognized in the statement
of operations when the hedged item affects earnings. Ineffective
portions of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges are imme-
diately recognized in earnings. If the derivative is designated as a
fair value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the derivative and
of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized

in earnings in the current period. For derivative instruments not
designated as hedging instruments under SFAS No. 133, changes
in fair values are recognized in earnings in the current period. Such
instruments are typically forward contracts used to hedge foreign
currency balance sheet exposures.



GOODWILL

Solectron performs goodwill impairment tests annually during the
fourth quarter of its fiscal year and more frequently if an event or
circumstance indicates that an impairment loss has been incurred.
Such events or circumstances may include significant adverse
changes in the general business climate, among others. Solectron
performs the impairment tests at the reporting unit level which has
been determined to be consistent with the business units as defined
in Note 12 except for the Technology Solutions and Global Services
business units which were disaggregated further. The tests are per-
formed by determining the fair values of Solectron’s reporting units
using a discounted future cash flow model and comparing those fair
values to the carrying values of the reporting units, including good-
will. If the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value,
Solectron then allocates the fair value of the unit to all the assets
and liabilities of that unit (including any unrecognized intangible
assets) as if the reporting unit's fair value was the price to acquire
the reporting unit. The excess of the fair value of the reporting unit
over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is the implied
fair value of the goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting
unit's goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an
impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations;
and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets! SFAS
No. 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used
for all business combinations initiated or completed after June 30,
2001. SFAS No. 141 also specifies the criteria intangible assets
acquired in a purchase method business combination must meet to
be recognized and reported apart from goodwill. SFAS No. 142
requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives no longer be amortized, but instead tested for impairment at
least annually. SFAS No. 142 also requires that intangible assets
with definite useful lives be amortized over their respective estimated
lives to their estimated residual values, and be reviewed for impair-
ment according to SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment
of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed
Of" In accordance with SFAS No. 141, Solectron is accounting for
all business combinations initiated or completed after June 30,
2001 using the purchase method of accounting. Solectron adopted
the remaining provisions of SFAS No. 141 and SFAS No. 142
effective September 1, 2001. See Note 17, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” for additional discussion of the Company’s imple-
mentation of SFAS No.142.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting
for Asset Retirement Obligations” SFAS No. 143 requires that the
fair value of an asset retirement obligation be recorded as a liability
in the period in which it incurs the obligation. SFAS No. 143 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. Solectron
will adopt SFAS No. 143 for its fiscal year beginning September 1,
2002 and does not expect such adoption will have a material impact
on its consolidated financial statements.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets; which super-
sedes SFAS No. 121. The primary objectives of SFAS No. 144 are
to develop one accounting model based on the framework estab-
lished in SFAS No. 121 for long-lived assets to be disposed of by
sale, and to address significant implementation issues identified
after the issuance of SFAS No. 121. Solectron will adopt SFAS No.
144 for its fiscal year beginning September 1, 2002. The adoption

is not expected to have a material impact on Solectron’s consoli-
dated financial statements.

In May 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of
FASB Statements Nos. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB State-
ment No.13 and Technical Corrections? SFAS No. 145 requires that
certain gains and losses from extinguishments of debt no longer
be classified as an extraordinary item. SFAS No. 145 is effective
for fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002 (with accounting for
certain transactions effective May 15, 2002). Solectron early adopted
SFAS No. 145 and reclassified gains from retirements of debt from
extraordinary to a separate line item within non-operating income
(expense).

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities” SFAS No. 146
requires that a liability for costs associated with an exit or disposal
activity be recognized and measured initially at fair value only when
the liability is incurred. SFAS No. 146 is effective for exit or disposal
activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002. Solectron does
not expect adoption of SFAS No. 146 to have a material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassified to conform with
the current-year presentation. The reclassifications had no impact
on the Company’s net income (loss).

Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and
Short-Term Investments (Including
Restricted Amounts)

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments (including
restricted amounts) as of August 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted
of the following:

Cash and
Cash  Short-Term
(in millions) Equivalents  Investments
Fiscal 2002
Cash $ 969.9 $ -
Money market funds 692.8 =
Certificates of deposit 24.8 11.4
Market auction securities 157.8 75.2
U.S. government securities 30.6 130.4
Corporate obligations = 73.0
Other 41.7 42.2
Total $1,917.6 $332.2
Fiscal 2001
Cash $2,244.7 $ -
Money market funds 174.4 =
Certificates of deposit 63.2 2.5
Market auction securities = 181.6
U.S. government securities = 4.6
Corporate obligations = 1022
Other = 16.9
Total $2,482.3 $307.8

Solectron had $135.7 million of restricted cash and cash equiva-
lents and $99.7 million of restricted short-term investments as of
August 31, 2002. Restricted cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments are restricted as collateral for specified obligations



under certain lease agreements and certain interest payments on
the 7.25% subordinated ACES debentures due November 15, 2006.
Short-term investments are carried at fair market value, which
approximates cost. Realized and unrealized gains and losses for the
fiscal years ended August 31, 2002 and 2001 were not material.

Note 3. Inventories
Inventories as of August 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of:

(in millions) 2002 2001
Raw materials $1,308.5 $2,5603.5
Work-in-process 236.5 331.0
Finished goods 325.0 375.4
Total $1,870.0 $3,009.9
Note 4. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment as of August 31, 2002 and 2001,
consisted of:
(in millions) 2002 2001
Land $ 514 $ 622
Building and improvements 338.1 341.1
Leasehold improvements 192.9 1338
Factory equipment 1,287.8 1,292.2
Computer equipment and software 440.0 337.1
Furniture, fixtures, and other 119.5 274.3
Construction-in-process 40.4 711
2,470.1 25118
Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization 1,297.1 1,207.1
Net property and equipment $1,173.0 $1,304.7

Note D. Lines of Credit

As of August 31, 2002, Solectron had available a $250 million
revolving line of credit that expires on February 12, 2003, and a
$250 million revolving line of credit that expires on February 14,
2005. Each of the revolving lines of credit is guaranteed by certain
of Solectron’s domestic subsidiaries and secured by the pledge of
equity interest in certain subsidiaries and notes evidencing intercom-
pany debt. Borrowings under the credit facilities bear interest, at the
option of Solectron, at the London interbank offering rate (LIBOR)
plus a margin of 1.75% based on Solectron’s current senior unse-
cured debt rating, or the higher of the Federal Funds Rate plus /2
of 1% or Bank of America N.Als publicly announced prime rate. As
of August 31, 2002, there were no borrowings outstanding under
these lines of credit. These credit facilities are subject to compliance
with certain covenants including capital expenditures, consolidated
tangible net worth, cash interest coverage, liquidity and other restric-
tions. As of August 31, 2002, Solectron was in compliance with all
such covenants.

On December 18, 2001, Moody's Investor's Service and
Standard & Poor's downgraded Solectron’s senior unsecured debt
rating to “Ba1” and “BB+; respectively, with a negative outlook.

On March 22, 2002, Standard and Poor's downgraded Solectron’s
senior unsecured debt rating to “BB” with a negative outlook. On

May 14, 2002, Moody's Investors Services further downgraded
Solectron’s senior unsecured debt rating to “Ba3” with a stable
outlook. These rating downgrades will increase Solectron's cost of
capital should Solectron borrow under its revolving lines of credit.

In addition, Solectron had $34.9 million in committed and
$443.6 million in uncommitted foreign lines of credit and other bank
facilities as of August 31, 2002. A committed line of credit obligates
a lender to loan the Company amounts under the credit facility as
long as the Company adheres to the terms of the credit agreement.
An uncommitted line of credit is extended to Solectron at the sole
discretion of a lender. The interest rates range from the bank’s prime
lending rate to the bank’s prime rate plus 2.0%. As of August 31,
2002, borrowings and guaranteed amounts were $81.6 million and
$57.6 million, respectively, under these foreign lines of credit.
Borrowings were payable on demand. The weighted-average inter-
est rate was 5.5% for committed and 2.5% for uncommitted foreign
lines of credit.

Note 6. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt at August 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of:

2002 2001

(in millions)

Zero-coupon convertible senior notes, 3.25%
face values of $2,557.1 and $2,900.0, fair
values of $1,118.8 and $1,212.8, due 2020

7.25% adjustable conversion-rate equity
securities, 44,000,000 units, fair value of
$545.6, due 2006

9.625% senior notes, face value of $500.0,
fair value of $465.0, due 2009

7.375% senior notes, face values of $150.0
and $150.0, fair values of $150.0 and
$150.3, due 2006

Zero-coupon convertible senior notes, 4% face
values of $1.2 and $1,656.0, fair values of
$0.6 and $8179, due 2019 0.6

Zero-coupon convertible senior notes, 2.75%
face values of $852.5 and $4,025.0, fair
value of $2,0475 in 2001, due 2020 —* 2,416.1

Other, fair values of $44.3 and $69.8 44.3 69.8

Total long-term debt $3,183.9 $5,027.5

$1,419.7 $1,560.5

1,072.3 =

4971 -
149.8

149.9

831.3

*remaining carrying amount of $527.2 million was classified in short-term debt as the
holders of these notes have the right to require Solectron to repurchase them on May 8,
2003 and its fair value was $496.1 million at August 31, 2002.

ZERO-COUPON CONVERTIBLE SENIOR NOTES (LYONS)

In November 2000, Solectron issued 2.9 million LYONs at an issue
price of $5624.78 per note, which resulted in gross proceeds to
Solectron of approximately $1.5 billion. These notes are unsecured
and unsubordinated indebtedness of Solectron. Solectron will pay
no interest prior to maturity. Each note has a yield of 3.25% with a
maturity value of $1,000 on November 20, 2020. Each note is con-
vertible at any time by the holder at a conversion rate of 11.7862
shares per note. Holders may require Solectron to purchase all or a
portion of their notes on May 20, 2004, November 20, 2005 and
November 20, 2010, at a price of $587.46, $616.57 and $724.42
per note, respectively, payable in cash or common stock at the
option of Solectron. Also, each holder may require Solectron to
repurchase all or a portion of such holder's notes if a change in con-
trol of the Company occurs on or before May 20, 2004. Solectron,



at its option, may redeem all or a portion of the notes at any time
on or after May 20, 2004. Solectron is amortizing the issue dis-
count using the effective interest method through May 20, 2004.
During fiscal 2002, Solectron repurchased a portion of the LYONs
with a carrying amount totaling approximately $183.2 million for
approximately $155.9 million in cash which resulted in a gain of
$27.3 million.

In May 2000, Solectron issued 4,025,000 LYONs at an issue
price of $5679.12 per note, which resulted in gross proceeds to
Solectron of approximately $2.3 billion. These notes are unsecured
and unsubordinated indebtedness of Solectron. There will be no
interest payment by Solectron prior to maturity. Each note has a
yield of 2.75% with a maturity value of $1,000 on May 8, 2020.
Each note is convertible at any time by the holder at a conversion
rate of 12.3309 shares per note. Holders may require Solectron to
purchase all or a portion of their notes on May 8, 2003 and May 8,
2010, at a price of $628.57 and $761.00 per note, respectively.
Also, each holder may require Solectron to repurchase all or a
portion of such holder's notes upon a change in control of the
Company occurring on or before May 8, 2003. Solectron, at its
option, may redeem all or a portion of the notes at any time on or
after May 8, 2003. Solectron is amortizing the issue discount
using the effective interest method through May 8, 2003. During
June 2002, Solectron repurchased a portion of these LYONs with a
carrying amount totaling approximately $1,903.0 million for approxi-
mately $1,839.9 million in cash which resulted in a gain of $63.1
million.

In January 1999, Solectron issued 1,656,000 LYONs at an
issue price of $452.89 per note which resulted in gross proceeds
of approximately $750 million. These notes were unsecured and
unsubordinated indebtedness. Each note had a yield of 4% with a
maturity value of $1,000 on January 27, 2019. Each note was con-
vertible at any time by the holder at a conversion rate of 14.944
shares per note. Holders were able to require Solectron to purchase
all or a portion of their notes on January 27, 2002 and January 27,
2009, at a price of $510.03 and $672.97 per note, respectively.
During fiscal 2002, Solectron repurchased substantially all of these
LYONSs with a carrying amount totaling approximately $825.5 million
for approximately $839.5 million in cash which resulted in a loss of
$14.0 million.

ADJUSTABLE CONVERSION-RATE EQUITY SECURITIES (ACES)

During the second quarter of fiscal 2002, Solectron closed its
public offering of $1.1 billion or 44 million units of 7.25% ACES.
Each ACES unit has a stated amount of $25.00 and consists of

(a) a contract requiring the holder to purchase, for $25.00, a number
of shares of Solectron common stock to be determined on Novem-
ber 15, 2004, based on the average trading price of Solectron’s
common stock at that time and certain specified settlement rates
ranging from 2.1597 shares of Solectron’s common stock per
purchase contract to 2.56484 shares of Solectron’s common stock
per purchase contract (subject to certain anti-dilution adjustments),
and (b) a $25 principal amount of 7.25% subordinated debenture
due 2006. Solectron received gross proceeds of approximately

$1.1 billion from the transaction. Solectron allocated $46.9 million
to the fair value of the purchase contracts and recorded this amount
in additional paid-in capital. The debentures initially will be held and
pledged for Solectron’s benefit to secure the holders’ obligation to
purchase Solectron's common stock on November 15, 2004. On or
about August 15, 2004, the ACES debentures will be remarketed

and if the remarketing is successful, the interest rate will be reset at
then current rates as described in the indentures and the proceeds
from the remarketing will be used to satisfy the holders’ obligation
to purchase Solectron’s common stock in November 2004. If the
debentures are not successfully remarketed, the interest rate will not
be reset and Solectron may use the pledged debentures to satisfy
the holders’ obligation to purchase the Company's common stock in
November 2004. Approximately $100 million of restricted cash,
cash equivalents and short-term investments as of August 31, 2002
represented Solectron’s collateral related to the Company's obliga-
tions for the next five quarterly interest payments.

9.625% SENIOR NOTES

On February 8, 2002, Solectron issued an aggregate principal
amount of $500 million of 9.6256% senior notes due 2009. Solectron
is required to pay interest on the notes in cash on February 15 and
August 15 of each year. The indenture governing the terms of these
notes contains restrictive covenants that limit Solectron and its sub-
sidiaries from making distributions on their capital stock, invest-
ments, incurring debt, issuing preferred stock, engaging in assets
sales and other important covenants and restrictions.

7.375% SENIOR NOTES

In March 1996, Solectron issued $150 million aggregate principal
amount of senior notes. These notes are in denominations of and
have a maturity value of $1,000 each and are due on March 1,
2006. Interest is payable semiannually at a rate of 7.375% per
annum. The notes may not be redeemed prior to maturity.

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt during each
of the five fiscal years subsequent to August 31, 2002, are as follows
(in millions):

Years ending August 31,

2003 $ 5359
2004 15188
2005 19.6
2006 150.6
2007 1,073.0
Thereafter 504.4

Total $3,802.3

Amounts presented as maturities of LYONSs are the cash amounts
due on the first date in which holders can require Solectron to
repurchase the notes. These amounts exceed the accreted values
reported on the balance sheet as of August 31, 2002.

Note 7. Financial Instruments
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of Solectron’s cash, cash equivalents, accounts receiv-
able, accounts payable and borrowings under lines of credit approxi-
mates the carrying amount due to the relatively short maturity of
these items. The fair value of Solectron’s short-term investments
(see Note 2) is determined based on quoted market prices. The fair
value of Solectron's long-term debt (see Note 6) is determined
based on broker trading prices.



DERIVATIVES

Solectron enters into foreign exchange forward contracts intended
to reduce the short-term impact of foreign currency fluctuations on
foreign currency receivables, investments and payables. The gains
and losses on the foreign exchange forward contracts offset the
transaction gains and losses on the foreign currency receivables,
investments, and payables recognized in earnings. The Company
does not enter into foreign exchange forward contracts for specu-
lative purposes. Solectron’s foreign exchange forward contracts
related to current assets and liabilities are generally three months
or less in original maturity.

Solectron periodically hedges foreign currency forecasted trans-
actions related to certain operating expenses with foreign exchange
forward contracts. These transactions are treated as cash flow hedges
in accordance with SFAS No. 133. These foreign exchange forward
contracts have original maturities of up to 18 months.

Solectron also uses interest rate swaps to hedge its mix of
short-term and long-term interest rate exposures resulting from
Solectron’s debt obligations. During the third quarter of fiscal 2002,
Solectron entered into interest rate swap transactions under which it
pays variable rates and receives fixed rates. The interest rate swaps
have a total notional amount of $1 billion. $500 million relates to the
Company’s $1.1 billion ACES and expires on November 15, 2004
and $500 million relates to the 9.625% $500 million senior notes
expiring on February 15, 2009. Under each of these swap trans-
actions, Solectron pays an interest rate equal to the 3-month LIBOR
rate plus a fixed spread. In exchange, Solectron receives fixed interest
rates of 7.26% on the first $500 million and 9.625% on the second
$500 million. These swap transactions effectively replace the fixed
interest rates that the Company must pay on a portion of its ACES
and all its 9.625% senior notes with variable interest rates. These
swaps are designated as fair value hedges under SFAS No. 133.

As of August 31, 2002, Solectron had outstanding foreign
exchange forward contracts with a total notional amount of approxi-
mately $580 million. The interest rate swaps had aggregate notional
amounts of $1 billion.

The fair values of the derivatives referred to above were not
significant.

For all derivative transactions, Solectron is exposed to counter-
party credit risk to the extent that the counter parties may not be
able to meet their obligations towards Solectron. To manage the
counterparty risk, Solectron limits its derivative transactions to those
with major financial institutions. Solectron does not expect to experi-
ence any material adverse financial consequences as a result of
default by Solectron’s counter parties.

BUSINESS AND CREDIT CONCENTRATIONS

Financial instruments that potentially subject Solectron to concen-
trations of credit risk consist of cash, cash equivalents, short-term
investments and trade accounts receivable. Solectron’s short-term
investments are managed by recognized financial institutions which
follow the Company’s investment policy. Such investment policy lim-
its the amount of credit exposure in any one issue and requires the
investment securities to be investment grade short-term debt instru-
ments. Concentrations of credit risk in accounts receivable resulting
from sales to major customers are discussed in Note 13. Solectron
generally does not require collateral for sales on credit. However, for
customers that have limited financial resources, Solectron may
require coverage for this risk including standby letters of credit, pre-
payments and consignment of inventories. The Company also moni-
tors extensions of credit and the financial condition of its major
customers.

Note 8. Commitments and Contingencies
SYNTHETIC LEASES

During the fourth fiscal quarter ended August 31, 2002, Solectron
and its subsidiaries restructured its synthetic lease agreements
relating to five manufacturing sites. The synthetic leases have expi-
ration dates in 2007. At the end of the lease term, Solectron has an
option, subject to certain conditions, to purchase or to cause a third
party to purchase the facilities subject to the synthetic leases for the
“Termination Value; which approximates the lessor’s original cost, or
may market the property to a third party at a different price. Solectron
is entitled to any proceeds from a sale of the properties to third
parties in excess of the Termination Value. In connection with its
restructuring of these synthetic leases, Solectron provided loans

to the lessor equaling approximately 85% of its initial Termination
Value. These loans are repayable solely from the sale of the proper-
ties to third parties in the future, are subordinated to the amounts
payable to the lessor at the end of the terms of the synthetic leases,
and may be credited against the Termination Value payable if
Solectron or its subsidiaries purchases the properties. The approxi-
mate maximum Termination Values and loan amounts for each of
the synthetic leases are provided below (in millions):

Termination Value Loan Amount

A) Milpitas, CA for land $ 35.0 $ 208
B) Milpitas, CA for improvements 18.4 16.7
C) San Jose, CA 13.6 115
D) Columbia, SC 24.7 21.0
E) Fremont, CA 23.4 19.9
F) Fremont, CA 9.6 8.1

Total $124.7 $106.0

In addition, cash collateral in an aggregate amount of $18.7 million
is pledged for the difference between the Termination Values and
the loan amounts. The cash collateral is included in restricted cash
and cash equivalents in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet as of August 31, 2002 and is restricted for the duration of
the lease term. Each lease agreement contains various affirmative
and financial covenants. A default under a lease, including violation
of these covenants, may accelerate the termination date of the
arrangement. Solectron was in compliance with these covenants as
of August 31, 2002. Monthly lease payments are generally based
on the Termination Value and 30-day LIBOR index (1.82% as of
August 31, 2002) plus an interest-rate margin, which may vary
depending upon the Company's Moody's Investors’ Services, and
Standard and Poor's ratings and are allocated between the lessor
and Solectron and its subsidiaries based on the proportion of the
loan amount to the total Termination Value for each synthetic lease.

After the restructuring, Solectron has continued to account for
these synthetic lease arrangements as operating leases in accor-
dance with SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases; as amended.
Solectron’s loans to the lessor are included in other long-term
assets in the consolidated balance sheet as of August 31, 2002.

If Solectron should determine that it is probable that the expected
fair value of the property at the end of the lease term will be less
than the Termination Value, the Company will recognize any
expected loss on a straight-line basis over the remaining lease term.

Solectron also purchased facilities for $179.3 million previously
under synthetic arrangements.



SALE LEASE-BACK TRANSACTIONS

Solectron periodically enters into lease arrangements with third-
party leasing companies under which it sells fixed assets and leases
them back from the leasing companies. Solectron is accounting for
these leases as operating leases and deferring any related gains
over the lease term.

FUTURE MINIMUM LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Future minimum payments related to lease obligations, including the
synthetic leases discussed above, are $112.6 million, $99.7 million,
$69.6 million, $43.5 million and $34.0 million in each of the years in
the five-year period ending August 31, 2007, and $108.6 million

for periods after that date. Rent expense was $163.3 million, $94.5
million, and $98.9 million for the years ended August 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

RELATED PARTY GUARANTEES

Solectron guarantees $60 million of debt and $88 million of vendor
contracts for its minority owned affiliate, Pacific City International
Holdings (PCI). The guarantees will expire during December 2002.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company, from time to time, is involved in various litigation
and legal matters (including those discussed below). The Company
does not expect that the ultimate outcome of these matters will
have a material adverse effect on its results of operations or finan-
cial position. The Company is not a party to legal proceedings that
individually or in the aggregate are believed to be material to the
Company’s business.

On August 29, 2002, ATEL Leasing Corporation, a lessor of
manufacturing equipment to the Company, filed suit against the
Company in the California Superior Court for the City and County
of San Francisco (ATEL Leasing Corp. v. Solectron Corp., Case
No. 412011), alleging that ATEL is entitled to recover as “liquidated
damages and not as a penalty” amounts equal to the “stipulated loss
value” of all of the equipment leased to the Company by ATEL under
two equipment lease agreements, even though the equipment in
question was neither lost nor damaged, and even though the Company
was current on all lease installment payments (and had paid all
applicable late payment fees) under the leases. ATEL's complaint
seeks “liquidated damages” of approximately $26 million, plus addi-
tional interest allegedly accruing thereon, and litigation expenses.
The Company believes ATELs claims are without merit, and that the
Company has meritorious defenses, including that the “liquidated
damages” provision upon which ATEL relies is an unenforceable
penalty under California law. In fact, the United States District Court
for the Northern District of California ruled in a March 2001 opinion
(ATEL Financial Corp. v. Quaker Coal Company, 132 F.Supp.2d 1233)
that a “liquidated damages” provision which ATEL had attempted to
enforce in that case was an unenforceable penalty under California
law. While ATEL has appealed that ruling, the Company believes the
U.S. District Court's decision was correct, and that the “liquidated
damages” provisions which ATEL is attempting to enforce against
the Company should similarly be held unenforceable under applica-
ble California law. The Company has filed a cross-complaint against
ATEL seeking damages and other appropriate relief.

On September 19, 2002, one of Solectron’s former employees
filed a complaint in the Superior Court of the State of California,
Santa Clara County, against the Company asserting two claims for
wrongful termination. The case is encaptioned Ronald Sorisho v.
Solectron Corporation, et al, Case No. CV811243. In the complaint,
plaintiff alleges that he was wrongfully terminated by Solectron
in supposed retaliation for his alleged efforts to ensure that the
Company timely recognized a charge for excess, obsolete and
slow moving inventory in the Technology Solutions business unit.
Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages in an amount “not less than
$2.5 million” as well as punitive damages. The Company believes
Mr. Sorisho's claims of wrongful termination are without merit and
intends to vigorously defend itself.

Note 9. Retirement Plans

Solectron has various retirement plans that cover a significant num-
ber of its eligible worldwide employees. The Company sponsors a
401(k) Plan to provide retirement benefits for its United States
employees. This Plan provides for tax-deferred salary deductions for
eligible employees. Employees may contribute between 1% to 15%
of their annual compensation to this Plan, limited by an annual maxi-
mum amount as determined by the Internal Revenue Service. The
Company also makes discretionary matching contributions, which
vest immediately, as periodically determined by its Board of Directors.
The Company's matching contributions to this Plan totaled $9.9 mil-
lion, $13.2 million and $10.7 million in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. In addition, certain of the Company’s non-United States
employees are covered by various defined benefit and defined
contribution plans. Solectron’s expense for these plans totaled

$2.9 million, $5.7 million and $9.6 million in fiscal 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

Note 10. Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense (benefit) for the fiscal
years ended August 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, were as follows
(in millions):

2002 2001 2000
Current:
Federal $(176.9) $119 $151.3
State 3.6 2.6 28.2
Foreign 221 39.2 486
(151.2) 53.7 228.1
Deferred:
Federal (212.1) (78.9) (10.6)
State (53.5) (14.3) ©.7)
Foreign (50.5) 5.3 22.0
(316.1) (87.9) 10.7
Total $(467.3) $(34.2) $238.8




The overall effective income tax rate (expressed as a percentage of
financial statement income (loss) before income taxes) varied from
the United States statutory income tax rate for the fiscal years
ended August 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Federal tax rate (35.0)% (35.0)% 35.0%
State income tax, net of federal

tax benefit (0.9) (4.8) 2.4
Income of international subsidiaries

taxed at different rates 0.8 329 0.1
Tax holidays (1.6) (41.6) (7.4)
Tax exempt interest income - (2.8) .1)
Nondeductible goodwill and

acquisition costs 18.4 7.9 1.1
Loss for which no benefit is

currently realized 5.5 17.8 =
Intercompany interest charges = 34 0.3
Other (0.3) 0.5 09
Effective income tax rate (13.1)% 21.7)% 32.3%

The tax effects of temporary differences that gave rise to significant
portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of August 31, 2002
and 2001, were as follows (in millions):

2002 2001

Deferred tax assets:

Accruals and allowances $ 261.7 $ 1039

State income tax 60.6 188

Acquired intangible assets 320.3 39.3

Depreciation 31.4 =

Net operating loss carryforwards and

tax credits 238.0 1331

Restructuring accruals 73.0 773

Other 11.3 19
Deferred tax assets 996.3 374.3
Valuation allowance (335.4) (71.6)
Total deferred tax assets 660.9 302.7
Deferred tax liabilities:

Foreign inventories expensed for

tax purposes (35.2) (81.9)

Depreciation - (29.8)

Realized translation gains (8.0) (30.8)

Foreign import incentives - 3.1)

Other - 0.1)
Total deferred tax liabilities (43.2) (145.7)
Net deferred tax assets $617.7 $ 157.0

As of August 31, 2002, $191.1 million of the total net deferred tax
assets are included in other current assets and $426.6 million are
included in other non-current assets on the consolidated balance
sheet. As of August 31, 2001, $54.9 million of the total net deferred
tax assets are included in other current assets and $102.1 million
are included in other non-current assets on the consolidated bal-
ance sheet.

The Company has U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards
in its U.S. consolidated group of approximately $44 million. The
net operating loss carryforwards, if not utilized, will expire in 2021
and 2022.

The Company also has U.S. federal net operating loss carryfor-
wards in its U.S. Robotics subsidiary of approximately $34.8 million.
These amounts are not currently available to offset U.S. taxable
income of the Company (other than income generated by U.S.
Robotics) under U.S. consolidated tax return rules. These net
operating loss carryforwards, if not utilized, will expire in 2021.

The Company also has acquired U.S. federal net operating loss
carryforwards from its acquisitions of NEL, Sequel Corporation,
Centennial Technologies, and C-MAC of approximately $62 million,
which will expire if not utilized beginning in 2011 through 2022.
The annual utilization of these net operating loss carryforwards is
limited under the “ownership change” provisions of the U.S. Internal
Revenue code.

The Company also has North Carolina investment tax credit
of $7.6 million which if not utilized will expire beginning in 2002
through 2007.

The Company also has California state net operating loss carry-
forwards in its unitary group of approximately $156.9 million, which
will expire if not utilized in 2011 and 2012.

The Company has net operating loss carryforwards in various
foreign jurisdictions. A summary of significant foreign net operating
loss carryforwards follows (in millions):

Amount Expiration
Jurisdiction
Australia $ 303 Indefinite
Brazil 54.3 Indefinite
Canada 121.0 2004-2009
France 160.3 2003-2007
Germany 34.8 Indefinite
Indonesia 12.0 2006-2007
Ireland 62.6 Indefinite
Japan 20.5 2006-2007
Malaysia 6.0 Indefinite
Mexico 24.2 2008-2012
Romania 330 2004-2007
Singapore 5.9 Indefinite
Netherlands 10.6 Indefinite
Turkey 9.6 2004-2005
United Kingdom 83.4 Indefinite

The Company has determined that a valuation allowance in the
amount of $335.4 million is required with respect to deferred tax
assets as of August 31, 2002. The Company believes that it is more
likely than not that the remaining deferred tax assets will be realized
principally through future taxable income, tax planning strategies
and, to a lesser extent, carrybacks to taxable income in prior years.
In the event the tax benefits relating to the valuation allowance are
realized, $95.2 million of such benefits would reduce goodwill and
$7.9 million would be credited to other comprehensive income.

Worldwide income (loss) before income taxes for the fiscal years
ended August 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, consisted of the following
(in millions):

2002 2001 2000
us. $(3,845.2) $(287.2) $392.1
Non-U.S. 267.7 129.5 347.4

Total $(3,577.5) $(157.7) $739.5




Cumulative undistributed earnings of the international subsidiaries
amounted to $592.8 million as of August 31, 2002, all of which is
intended to be permanently reinvested. The amount of income tax
liability that would result had such earnings been repatriated is
estimated to be approximately $141.7 million.

Solectron has been granted a tax holiday for certain of its
Malaysian sites which is effective through July 2011, subject to
certain conditions. In addition, Solectron has been granted a tax
holiday for certain manufacturing operations in Singapore which is
effective through March 2011, subject to certain conditions. Seven
of Solectron’s China sites have separate tax holiday agreements.
Each agreement expires five years from the first profitable year
for each site. Five of these sites have tax holidays expiring from
December 2002 through December 2007. Two sites have not yet
incurred a profitable year, thus the expiration of the tax holiday
status for those sites has not yet been determined. The net impact
of these tax holidays was to decrease net loss by approximately
$37 million, or $0.05 per diluted share, in 2002 and approxi-
mately $58 million, or $0.08 per diluted share, in 2001.

Note 11. Stockholders’ Equity
ISSUANCE OF COMMON STOCK

In fiscal 2000, Solectron sold, through an underwritten public offer-
ing, 38 million shares of common stock which generated net pro-
ceeds of approximately $1.3 billion.

STOCK REPURCHASE

On September 17, 2001, Solectron’s board of directors authorized a
$200 million stock repurchase program. During the first fiscal quar-
ter of 2002, Solectron repurchased 442,200 shares of its common
stock at an average price of $10.10 for approximately $4.5 million.

STOCK SPLIT

Effective March 8, 2000, Solectron completed a two-for-one stock
split effected as stock dividends. All references to share and per-

share data have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the stock split.

PRO FORMA FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES

Solectron accounts for its employee stock plans, which consist of
fixed stock option plans and an employee stock purchase plan, using
the intrinsic value method under APB Opinion No. 25. No compen-
sation expense related to these plans has been recognized in the
Company's financial statements. The table below sets out the pro
forma amounts of net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share
that would have resulted for the fiscal years ended August 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, if Solectron accounted for its employee
stock plans under the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS

No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”

(in millions, except per-share data) 2002 2001 2000
Net income (loss):
As reported $(3,110.2) $(1235) $497.2
Pro forma $(3,198.7)  $(2099) $444.0
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic As reported $ (3.98) $ (0.19) $ 083
Basic Pro forma $ (4.10) $ (033 $ 074
Diluted  As reported $ (398 $ (019 $ 080
Diluted Pro forma $ (4.10) $ (033) $ 071

For purposes of computing pro forma net income (loss), the fair
value of each option grant and Employee Stock Purchase Plan
purchase right is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. The assumptions used to value the
option grants and purchase rights are stated below.

2002 2001 2000

Expected life

of options 3 years 3.5 years 3.5 years
Expected life of

purchase rights 6 months 6 months 3 months
Volatility 70% 65% 52%
Risk-free interest

rate 1.64% to 4.14%  3.4% to 6.34%  4.8% to 6.8%
Dividend yield zero zero zero

STOCK OPTION PLANS

Solectron’s stock option plans provide for grants of options to
employees to purchase common stock at the fair market value of
such shares on the grant date. The options vest over a four-year
period beginning generally on the grant date. The term of the
options is five years for options granted prior to January 12, 1994,
seven years for options granted prior to September 20, 2001, and
ten years for options granted thereafter. In connection with the
acquisitions of Force, SMART, Bluegum, Centennial Technologies,
C-MAC and Iphotonics, Solectron assumed all options outstanding
under the related companies’ option plans. Options under these
plans generally vest over periods ranging from immediately to five
years from the original grant date and have terms ranging from two
to ten years. These options are considered granted in the year the
acquisition occurred in the tables contained herein. No further
options may be granted under these plans.



A summary of stock option activity under the plans for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, follows (in millions, except

per-share data):

2002 2001 2000

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Number Exercise Number Exercise Number Exercise

of Shares Price of Shares Price of Shares Price

Outstanding, beginning of year 47.9 $22.61 441 $17.72 459 $11.29

Granted 26.1 $10.40 14.4 $32.98 13.4 $34.21

Exercised (8.1) $ 6.02 (7.0) $ 877 (10.8) $ 818

Canceled (7.7) $21.92 (3.6) $30.23 (4.4) $21.94

Outstanding, end of year 63.2 $18.50 479 $2261 44.1 $17.72

Exercisable, end of year 36.4 $17.64 27.0 $16.53 23.6 $11.23
Weighted-average fair value of options

granted during the year $ 6.97 $17.91 $15.92

Information regarding the stock options outstanding at August 31, 2002, is summarized in the table below (in millions, except number of

years and per-share data).

Outstanding

Weighted

Average

Range of Number Remaining
Exercise Price of Shares Contractual Life
$ 038-$ 598 6.6 2.64 years
$ 6.13-% 7.48 2.7 458 years
$ 7.80-$10.29 16.4 8.71 years
$10.34-$12.69 6.5 3.77 years
$12.99-$16.43 7.3 5.06 years
$16566-$22.92 6.3 5.47 years
$23.84-$35.03 8.2 4.67years
$36.27-$46.13 82 492 years
$46.94-3$51.67 1.0 5.14 years
$ 0.38-$51.67 63.2 557 years

A total of 47.8 million shares of common stock remain reserved
for grant under the plans as of August 31, 2002.

An initial option is granted to each new outside member of
Solectron’s Board of Directors to purchase 15,000 shares of com-
mon stock at the fair value on the date of the grant. On December 1,
of each year, each outside member is granted an additional option to
purchase 8,000 shares of common stock at the fair market value on
such date. These options vest over one year and have a term of
seven years.

EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

Under Solectron's Employee Stock Purchase Plans (the Purchase
Plans), employees meeting specific employment qualifications

are eligible to participate and can purchase shares semi-annually
through payroll deductions at the lower of 85% of the fair market
value of the stock at the commencement or end of the offering
period. The Purchase Plans permit eligible employees to purchase
common stock through payroll deductions for up to 10% of qualified
compensation. As of August 31, 2002, 1.2 million shares remain
available for issuance under the Purchase Plans.

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

$ 450
$ 694
$10.22
$11.38
$13.82
$19.34
$31.23
$42.86
$46.99

$18.50

Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Number Exercise
of Shares Price
6.2 $ 444
19 $ 6.89
42 $10.156
b.6 $11.43
B8 $13.66
38 $19.73
B2 $31.63
37 $43.21
0.5 $47.05
36.4 $17.64

The weighted average fair value of the purchase rights granted
by Solectron in fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $5.13, $12.90
and $16.11, respectively.

Note 12. Segment and
Geographic Information

Solectron provides integrated supply-chain solutions that span the
entire product life cycle, including technology, manufacturing and
services. The Company has approximately 50 major manufacturing
facilities in the Americas, Europe and Asia/Pacific to serve these
similar customers. Solectron is operated and managed by business
unit, and the business units are further managed geographically.
Each industry segment has its own president and support staff.
Solectron’s management uses an internal management reporting
system, which provides financial data to evaluate performance and
allocate Solectron’s resources on a business unit and geographic
basis. Intersegment adjustments are related primarily to interseg-
ment sales that are generally recorded at prices that approximate
arm’s length transactions. Certain corporate expenses are allocated
to these operating segments and are included for performance
evaluation. Some amortization expenses are also allocated to these



operating segments, but the related intangible assets are not allo- The following enterprise-wide information for the fiscal years ended
cated. The accounting policies for the segments are the same as for ~ August 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 is provided in accordance with

Solectron taken as a whole. Solectron has four reportable operating SFAS No. 131. Geographic net sales information reflects the

segments: Global Operations, Technology Solutions, Global Services destination of the product shipped. Long-lived assets information

and MicroSystems. Information about the operating segments for is based on the physical location of the asset. The United States

the fiscal years ended August 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, was accounted for more than 10% of total sales and total assets in the

as follows: periods presented. Malaysia accounted for more than 10% of total
sales. For major customers information, the Company’s operating

(in millions) 2002 2001 2000 segments contributed various percentages aggregating up to 10%

Net sales: or more of consolidated net sales for such customers identified in
Global Operations $10,287.4  $17,181.6  $124185 Note 13.

Technology Solutions 860.3 1,201.1 1,486.5
Global Services 822.7 309.6 2325 (in millions) 2002 2001 2000
MicroSystems 305.8 - - Net sales derived from:

$12,276.2 $18,692.3 $14,137.5 PCB assembly $ 6,645.7 $13,738.3 $ 99405

D L R Systems build 3,641.7 3,434.6 2,516.1

epreciation and amortization: .

Global Operations $ 2706 $ 4508 $ 1941 lisghmelagy Sl

Technology Solutions 27.4 22.1 26.1 PSS ‘ 0 U2 LEULL

@lleoel Sarviess 28.9 100 198 Gl.obal Services 822.7 3115 179.8

MicroSystems 8.7 _ _ MicroSystems 305.8 = =

Corporate 41.2 53.2 184 $12,276.2  $186923  $14,1375
$ 3768 $ 5361 $ 92514 Geographic net sales:

Interest income: United States $ 47575 $ 87744 $ 64963
Global Operations $ 25.3 $ 18.8 $ 8.6 Mal.ay5|a . 1,395.0 19804 1,349.7
Technology Solutions 1.7 19 5.7 Lty Amer|cg e sy
Ellefbel Serviess 0.6 0.1 09 North America 1,469.4 2,807.7 1,832.6
MicroSystems 03 _ _ Europe 2,036.1 3,398.8 3,440.9
Corporate 42.9 96.1 994 Asia/Pacific 2,618.2 1,731.0 1,018.0

$ 701 $ 1169 $ 1069 $12,276.2 $18,692.3 $14,137.5

. Long-lived assets:
Interest expense:

Global Operations $ 20.0 $ 197 $ 69 United States $ 1,809.4 $ 1,592.8 $ 8378

. Europe 337.2 378.1 607.2
Technology Solutions 1.2 0.8 1.1 iy - e o
Bllebel Serviees 16 ©.1) 09 sia/Pacific and other 2,207.4 25 5Y 302.
MicroSystems 1.2 - — $ 4,354.0 $ 42963 $ 1,747.4
Corporate 220.1 155.6 62.7

$ 24441 $ 1760 $ 716

Note 13. Major Customers

Income (loss) before income

taxes and cumulative Net sales to major customers as a percentage of consolidated net

effect of change in sales were as follows:

accounting principle:
Global Operations $(3348.1) $ (428 $ 6687 VYears ended August 31, 2002 2001 2000
Technology Solutions (84.3) 20.4 78.4 Nortel 13.6% 11.9% .
AGA"‘;ES'SYS;Z;T:S 1(;:3) 988 26 HP/Compag”™ 11.2% 10.6% 15.7%

Cisco 10.9% 11.5% 12.0%
Corporate (153.6) (174.1) (10.2) Ericsson . 13.7% 13.0%
$(35775) $ (1577) $ 7395
Capital expenditures: ‘less than 10%

Global Operations $ 3185 $ 4543 $ 4323 “percents in fiscal QQOQ, 2001. and 2000 reflect the combined net sales to HP and

Technology Solutions 14.9 207 290 Compagq due to their merger in May 2002.

Global Services 48.0 12.3 18.7 ) o

MicroSystems 5.4 _ _ Solectron has concentrations of credit risk due to sales to these and

Corporate 343 475 20.0 other of Solectron’s significant customers. In particular, Nortel accounts
for approximately 15% of total accounts receivable at August 31,
2002. The concentration of credit risk is intensified because the
majority of Solectron’s customers are in the same industry.

$ 4211 $ 5368 $ 5060

Total assets:

Global Operations $ 7,150.2 $ 97524 $ 5,303.4
Technology Solutions 499.7 b87.6 500.2
Global Services 808.2 184.9 29922
MicroSystems 273.5 = =
Corporate 2,282.4 2,56565.1 4,349.8

$11,014.0 $13,079.9 $10,375.6




Note 14. Purchase of Assets
FISCAL 2002

During the third quarter of fiscal 2002, Solectron announced the
completion of a three-year supply agreement to produce optical
networking equipment for Lucent. As part of the three-year supply
agreement, Solectron purchased equipment and inventory related

to Lucent's optical product lines for approximately $99.4 million in
cash. Subsequently, as a result of significant changes in the market-
place and decreased demand, both parties reached a mutual agree-
ment in principle on October 21, 2002 to unwind this supply
agreement. Solectron has agreed to unwind their outsourcing and
asset purchase transaction involving Lucent’s optical networking
systems in Andover, Massachusetts. It is expected to conclude with
Lucent a definitive agreement to unwind the May 31, 2002 transaction
in Solectron’s first quarter of fiscal 2003. Under the general terms
of the agreement in principle, Lucent will repurchase the equipment
and unused inventory that Solectron acquired in May 2002. Solectron
will continue to produce and support a portion of Lucent's optical
networking products through March 2003. Solectron does not antic-
ipate any losses on changes to this supply agreement.

FISCAL 2001

During the second quarter of fiscal 2001, Solectron acquired IBM's
European Repair Center in Amsterdam, the Netherlands for approxi-
mately $10 million in cash. In addition, Solectron assumed responsi-
bility for IBM's European repair, refurbishment and asset recovery
services provided by the Amsterdam operations.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2001, Solectron completed
the acquisition of Sony's manufacturing facilities in Nakaniida,
Japan, and Kaohsiung, Taiwan for approximately $75 million in cash.
The new sites provide a range of electronics manufacturing services
to Sony and other customers.

FISCAL 2000

During the first quarter of fiscal 2000, Solectron acquired the
manufacturing assets, primarily inventory and equipment, of IBM's
Netfinity server operations in Greenock, Scotland in several phases
for approximately $19.2 million. In addition, Solectron acquired
certain IBM intellectual property rights included in the design and
manufacture of PC server motherboards for $19.6 million. Solectron
provides to IBM for three years fully integrated PCBA services
including early prototyping, new product launch, assembly and test,
volume production, end-of-life support and life cycle management.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2000, Solectron completed
the acquisition of the complex systems manufacturing assets of
Ericsson Telecom AB's telecommunications infrastructure equipment
operations in Longuenesse, France, and Ostersund, Sweden. The
total purchase price for the manufacturing assets and intangible
assets was approximately $162.2 million. As part of the agreement,
Solectron provides a complete range of integrated supply-chain
solutions to Ericsson Telecom AB.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2000, Solectron completed the
acquisition of the manufacturing assets of Premisys Communications,
Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Zhone Technologies, Inc. The total
purchase price for the manufacturing assets and intangible assets
was approximately $156.5 million. Zhone is a communications
equipment provider integrating expertise in voice, video and data
communications. Under the agreement, Solectron became Zhone's
virtual supply chain partner and signed a five-year commitment with
Zhone to provide product life-cycle management services, including
new product introduction process through repair and end-of-life
services.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2000, Solectron acquired the
manufacturing assets of several Nortel manufacturing facilities
including Calgary, Canada; Research Triangle Park, North Carolina;
Monterrey, Mexico; and Cwmcarn, Wales. Solectron provides proto-
typing, PCBA, small sub-assembly and repair services to Nortel in
these locations. Also in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000, Solectron
completed the purchase of manufacturing assets at two Nortel
manufacturing and repair facilities located in Pont de Buis and
Douarnenez, the Brittany region of France, and in Monkstown,
Northern Ireland, United Kingdom, for which Solectron will offer pro-
totyping, PCBA, small sub-assembly and repair services to Nortel.
The aggregate purchase price of the Nortel assets was approxi-
mately $900 million.

The purchase price of the asset purchases referred to above was
allocated to the assets acquired, primarily inventory, fixed assets and
identifiable intangibles, based on the estimated fair values at each
acquisition date.

Note 1b. Business Combinations
FISCAL 2002
C-MAC INDUSTRIES, INC. (C-MAC)

During the second quarter of 2002, Solectron completed its acqui-
sition of 100% of the outstanding common stock of C-MAC, which
provides a comprehensive portfolio of electronic manufacturing serv-
ices and solutions to customers worldwide. The Company attributes
the goodwill in this transaction to management's belief that the
acquisition will enable Solectron to create a diversified provider of
integrated electronic manufacturing solutions that can benefit from
complementary high-end technology capabilities, selected vertical
integration and improved access to growth opportunities and meet
the growing demand by customers for complete supply-chain
management solutions.

The Company issued approximately 98.8 million shares of its
common stock, 52.5 million exchangeable shares of Solectron
Global Services Canada Inc., which are exchangeable on a one-to-
one basis for Solectron Corporation’s common stock, and 5.2 million
options to purchase Solectron Corporation’s common stock in the
transaction. The purchase price was $2,566.9 million, consisting of
stock valued at $2,487.2 million, stock options valued at $63.1 mil-
lion and direct acquisition costs of $22 million reduced by the intrin-
sic value of unvested stock options of $5.4 million. The value of the
common stock issued was determined based on the average market
price of Solectron’s common stock over the five-day period before
and after the terms of the acquisition were agreed to and announced.



The Company's statements of operations include C-MAC's
results from the acquisition date. The following unaudited pro forma
financial information presents the combined results of operations of
Solectron and C-MAC as if the acquisition had occurred as of the
beginning of fiscal 2002 and 2001. The pro forma financial informa-
tion does not necessarily reflect the results of operations that would
have occurred if Solectron and C-MAC constituted a single entity
during such periods.

(in millions, except per-share data) 2002 2001

Net sales $12,518.7 $20,475.9
Net loss $(3,133.7) $ (60.0)
Basic loss per share $ (382 $ (008
Diluted loss per share $ (382 $ (0.08)

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition
(in millions):

Accounts receivable $ 2774
Inventory 362.1
Other current assets 2145
Property and equipment 2133
Goodwill 21149
Other intangible assets 25.6
Other assets 45.7
Total assets acquired $3,263.5
Current liabilities $ (316.6)
Long-term debt (337.8)
Other liabilities (32.3)
Total liabilities assumed $ (686.6)

Certain allocations above are based on management's preliminary
estimate of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. In connection
with the C-MAC acquisition, Solectron intends to close certain loca-
tions and terminate employees at those sites. Solectron estimated
the impact of these activities and has recorded the affected assets
at net realizable value and accrued approximately $30 million in
employee severance liabilities upon acquisition. The Company is
presently awaiting a final appraisal of the C-MAC assets acquired
and certain of the recorded amounts may change based on the
results of the appraisals. It is expected that the final appraisal will
be completed during the first quarter of fiscal 2003.

The intangible assets acquired had a fair value of approximately
$26 million based on an independent valuation. All the intangible
assets resulting from the acquisition are classified under the “other”
category of the table of intangible assets presented in Note 17. The
weighted-average useful life of these intangible assets is approxi-
mately six years. Solectron does not expect these assets to have a
residual value upon full amortization.

The $2.1 billion of goodwill resulting from the C-MAC trans-
action was assigned to the Global Operations, Technology Solutions
and MicroSystems business units in the amounts of $2.0 billion,
$25 million and $68 million, respectively. Approximately $300 mil-
lion of these amounts is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

OTHER ACQUISITIONS

During the first quarter of 2002, Solectron completed its acquisition
of Iphotonics, Inc., an optical products manufacturer, for approxi-
mately 10.2 million shares of Solectron common stock and 428,000
options to purchase Solectron’s common stock. The purchase price
was $125.2 million, consisting of stock valued at $121.6 million,
stock options valued at $3.1 million and direct acquisition costs of
$0.5 million. This transaction resulted in goodwill of approximately
$105 million within the Global Operations business unit. The value
of the common stock issued was determined based on the average
market price of Solectron’s common stock over the five-day period
before and after the terms of the acquisition were agreed to and
announced.

During the first quarter of 2002, Solectron completed its acqui-
sition of Stream International, Inc,, a global customer relationship
management provider, for approximately $366.6 million in cash. This
transaction resulted in goodwill of approximately $271 million within
the Global Services business unit.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2002, Solectron completed its
acquisition of Artesyn Solutions, Inc. for approximately $36.4 million
in cash. Artesyn Solutions, Inc. is a provider of extensive repair,
refurbishment, logistics and supply-chain management and end-of-
life planning services for customers in the computer, printer, storage,
server, wireless and consumer electronics sector. This transaction
resulted in goodwill of approximately $32.9 million within the Global
Services business unit.

During the third quarter of 2002, Solectron announced the com-
pletion of its acquisition of NEC Ibaraki, a provider of manufacturing,
fulfillment and demand forecasting services. The purchase price of
the acquisition was approximately $16.6 million in cash. No goodwill
resulted from this transaction.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, Solectron completed its
acquisition of MDT, a global provider of after-sales services for the
communications, computer and electronic storage markets for
approximately $70 million in cash. This transaction resulted in good-
will of approximately $85.9 million within the Global Services busi-
ness unit.

Pro forma financial information related to Iphotonics, Stream,
Artesyn, NEC Ibaraki, and MDT are not provided as their operations
were not significant individually or in the aggregate to Solectron as
a whole.



FISCAL 2001
NATSTEEL ELECTRONICS LTD (NEL)

During the second quarter of 2001, Solectron completed its acquisi-
tion of NEL, a competitor. Solectron purchased all of the outstand-
ing issued share capital and convertible bonds for $2.3 billion and
$122.4 million, respectively, in cash. The acquisition was accounted
for using the purchase method and resulted in goodwill of approxi-
mately $2.0 billion within the Global Operations business unit. As
part of the acquisition, Solectron gained key manufacturing sites
in China, Hungary, Indonesia, Malaysia, Mexico, Singapore and
United States.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition
(in millions):

Cash $ 553
Accounts receivable 35173
Inventory 393.8
Other current assets 48.6
Property and equipment 2424
Goodwill 19749
Other assets 752

Total assets acquired $3,147.5
Short-term debt $ (251.5)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (428.9)
Other liabilities (12.4)

Total liabilities assumed $ (692.8)

The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents
the combined results of operations of Solectron and NEL as if the
acquisition had occurred as of the beginning of fiscal 2001 and
2000. The pro forma financial information does not necessarily
reflect the results of operations that would have occurred had
Solectron and NEL constituted a single entity during such periods.

(in millions, except per-share data) 2001 2000
Net sales $19,734.7 $16,258.8
Net income (loss) $ (210.1) $ 5361
Basic income (loss) per share $ (033 $ 0.85

Diluted income (loss) per share $ (033 $ 0.81

OTHER ACQUISITIONS

During the third quarter of fiscal year 2001, Solectron issued
approximately 2.2 million shares of common stock to acquire all of
the outstanding capital stock of Centennial. The acquisition, valued
at approximately $64.5 million, was accounted for using the pur-
chase method and resulted in goodwill of approximately $45.8 mil-
lion within the Technology Solutions business unit. As a result of the
transaction, Solectron gained all of Centennial's design, manufac-
turing and marketing capabilities, which include memory module
and memory card solutions based on SRAM and flash technologies
for OEMs and end-users in markets such as telecommunications,
data communications, mobile computing and medical.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, Solectron completed
the acquisition of Shinei, a privately held manufacturer and designer
of enclosures for electronics products. The acquisition, valued at
approximately $72.9 million, was accounted for using the purchase
method and resulted in goodwill of approximately $63.3 million
within the Global Operations business unit.

Pro forma financial information related to Centennial and Shinei
is not provided as their operations were not significant individually
or in the aggregate to Solectron as a whole.

FISCAL 2000

During the first quarter of fiscal 2000, Solectron acquired NULOGIX
Technical Services, Inc. (NULOGIX), a wholly owned subsidiary of
IBM Canada, in its entirety. NULOGIX is located in Vaughan, Ontario,
Canada, and specializes in repair, manufacturing and refurbishment.
The purchase price was approximately $4.0 million. The acquisition
was accounted for as a purchase of a business resulting in goodwill
of approximately $1.4 million within the Global Services business unit.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2000, Solectron completed the
acquisition of Alcatel's manufacturing business in Aguadilla, Puerto
42 (Alcatel). The purchase price was approximately $47.2 million.
The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase of a business
resulting in goodwill of approximately $13.3 million within the Global
Operations business unit. Alcatel is a world leader in building next-
generation networks and end-to-end data voice solutions. As part
of the acquisition of Alcatel's manufacturing business in Aguadilla,
Solectron assumed full manufacturing responsibility for Alcatel's
PCBA products focused on the networking and telecommunication
industries. Additionally, Solectron provides a full range of manufac-
turing services to Alcatel for three years including prototyping and
high-volume PCBA.

Pro forma financial information related to NULOGIX and Alcatel
is not provided as their operations were not significant individually or
in the aggregate to Solectron as a whole.

Note 16. Restructuring

Beginning in the second quarter of fiscal 2001, Solectron initiated

a restructuring of its operations in light of the current economic
downturn. The measures, which included reducing the workforce,
consolidating facilities and changing the strategic focus of a number
of sites, was largely intended to align Solectron’s capacity and
infrastructure to anticipated customer demand as well as to
rationalize its footprint worldwide.

FISCAL 2002

The employee severance and benefit costs included in these
restructuring charges relate to the elimination of approximately
15,000 full-time positions worldwide and all such positions have
been eliminated under this plan. Approximately 69% of the positions
eliminated were in the Americas region, 20% were in Europe and
11% were in Asia/Pacific. The employment reductions primarily
affected employees in manufacturing and back office support func-
tions within the Global Operations business unit. Facilities and
equipment subject to restructuring were primarily located in the
Americas and Europe within the Global Operations business unit.
For leased facilities that will be abandoned and subleased, the lease
costs represent future lease payments subsequent to abandonment
less estimated sublease income. For owned facilities and equipment,
the impairment loss recognized was based on the fair value less
costs to sell, with fair value based on estimated of existing market
prices for similar assets.



During fiscal 2002, we recorded restructuring and impairment
costs related to this plan of $615.5 million against earnings. These
restructuring and impairment charges occurred primarily in the sec-
ond and third quarters. The following table summarizes restructuring
charges in fiscal 2002 (in millions):

2002 Nature
Impairment of equipment $127.8 non-cash
Impairment of facilities 81.0 non-cash
Impairment of IT software and other assets 162.1 non-cash
Impairment of equipment, facilities and others 370.9
Severance and benefit costs 119.8 cash
Loss on leased equipment 23.8 cash
Loss on leased facilities 80.3 cash
Other exit costs 20.7 cash
Total $615.5

FISCAL 2001

The employee severance and benefit costs included in these
restructuring charges relate to the elimination of approximately
11,800 full-time positions worldwide and all such positions have
been eliminated under this plan. Approximately 67% of the positions
eliminated were in the Americas region, 23% were in Europe and
10% were in Asia/Pacific. The employment reductions primarily
affected employees in manufacturing and back office support func-
tions within the Global Operations business unit. Facilities and

Americas and Europe within the Global Operations business unit.
For leased facilities that will be abandoned and subleased, the lease
costs represent future lease payments subsequent to abandonment
less estimated sublease income. For owned facilities and equipment
the impairment loss recognized was based on the fair value less
costs to sell, with fair value based on estimates of existing market
prices for similar assets.

During fiscal 2001, we recorded restructuring and impairment
costs related to this plan of $517.3 million against earnings. These
restructuring and impairment charges occurred primarily in the third
and fourth quarters. The following table summarizes restructuring
charges in fiscal 2001 (in millions):

2001 Nature
Impairment of equipment $188.2 non-cash
Impairment of facilities 37.7 non-cash
Impairment of goodwill, intangible and
other assets 42.2 non-cash
Impairment of equipment, facilities and others 268.1
Severance and benefit costs 70.0 cash
Loss on leased equipment 117.5 cash
Loss on leased facilities 56.4 cash
Other exit costs 5.3 cash
Total $517.3

The following table summarizes the restructuring accrual activity in
fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2002 (in millions):

equipment subject to restructuring were primarily located in the

Lease Lease

Severance Payments Payments
and Benefits on Facilities on Equipment Other Total
Balance of accrual at September 1, 2000 $ = $ = $ = $ - $ =
Provision 70.0 56.4 1175 B3 249.2
Cash payment (70.0) (5.5) (5.0) 0.9) (81.4)
Balance of accrual at August 31, 2001 = 50.9 1125 4.4 167.8
Provision 119.8 84.2 303 20.7 255.0
Provision adjustments = (3.9 (6.5) = (10.4)
Cash payment (113.7) (67.1) (72.2) (24.8) (277.8)
Balance of accrual at August 31, 2002 $ 6.1 $64.1 $ 64.1 $ 03 $134.6

Accruals related to restructuring activities were recorded in accrued expenses

in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.



Note 17. Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets!’ SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill and intangi-
ble assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized, but
instead tested for impairment at least annually. SFAS No.142 also
requires that intangible assets with definite useful lives be amortized
over their respective estimated lives to their estimated residual val-
ues, and be reviewed for impairment according to SFAS No. 121,
‘Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-
Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of”

SFAS No. 142 required that Solectron evaluate existing intan-
gible assets and goodwill acquired in prior purchase business
combinations, and to make any necessary reclassifications in
order to conform to the new criteria in SFAS No. 141, “Business
Combinations;' for recognition apart from goodwill. Upon adoption of
SFAS No. 142, Solectron reassessed the useful lives and residual
values of all intangible assets acquired in purchase business com-
binations, and no significant changes were deemed necessary.
Solectron was also required to test the intangible assets for impair-
ment within the first interim period and no impairment loss was
deemed necessary.

For the transitional goodwill impairment evaluation, SFAS No. 142
required Solectron to perform an assessment of whether there was
an indication that goodwill was impaired as of the date of adoption,
or step one of the impairment test. To accomplish this, Solectron
identified the reporting units to be consistent with the business
units as defined in Note 12 except for the Technology Solutions and
Global Services business units which were disaggregated further.
Solectron then determined the carrying value of each reporting unit
by allocating the assets and liabilities, including the goodwill and
intangible assets, to the units as of the date of adoption. Solectron
had up to six months from the date of adoption to determine the fair
value of each reporting unit and compare it to the reporting unit's
carrying value. If a reporting unit's carrying amount exceeds its fair
value, an indication exists that the reporting unit's goodwill is
impaired and Solectron was required to perform the second step of
the transitional impairment test. During the second quarter of fiscal
2002, Solectron performed step one of the transitional test and
concluded that there was no impairment and no second step was
necessary.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, Solectron performed its
annual goodwill impairment test in accordance with SFAS No. 142
which included step one as described above for each of the report-
ing units. Results of step one indicated that an impairment existed
within the Global Operations business unit since the estimated fair
value, based on expected future discounted cash flows to be gener-
ated from the unit, was less than its carrying value. Pursuant to the
second step of the test, Solectron compared the implied fair value
of the unit's goodwill (determined by allocating the unit's fair value
based on expected future discounted cash flows, to all its assets,
recognized and unrecognized, and liabilities in a manner similar to
a purchase price allocation for an acquired business) to its carrying
amount. In connection with allocating the fair value of the Global
Operations business unit, Solectron also obtained independent
valuations of certain unrecognized intangible assets as well as
fixed assets.

The discounted cash flow models used to determine the fair val-
ues of reporting units in the tests were prepared using revenue and
expense projections based on Solectron’s current operating plan.
The revenue projections are management'’s best estimates consider-
ing current and expected economic and industry conditions. The
discounted cash flow model also included a terminal value for years
six and beyond that assumes future free cash flow growth ranging
from 3% to 4% based on management's estimates and standard
industry rates used by analysts monitoring Solectron’s industry.

The cash flows were discounted using a weighted average cost

of capital ranging from 12% to 13% which is management's best
estimate considering the debt and equity structure of the Company
and external industry data. The discounted cash flows related to the
terminal value represents approximately 84% of total expected
future discounted cash flows.

Significant negative industry and economic trends affecting
Solectron’s current and future operations as well as a significant
decline in Solectron’s stock price contributed to the fourth quarter
impairment test resulting in an impairment of goodwill related to
the Global Operations business unit of approximately $2.5 billion.

In addition, Solectron performed its quarterly impairment test of
other intangible assets during the fourth quarter fiscal 2002. As a
result, Solectron recorded an impairment charge related to a supply
agreement with a major customer of approximately $191 million.
This impairment occurred due to reduced expectations of sales to
be realized under the Company’s supply agreement with that cus-
tomer and was measured by comparing the intangible asset's carry-
ing amount to the fair value as determined using a discounted cash
flow model.

The impairments referred to above were recorded within
“Restructuring and Impairment Costs” in the accompanying con-
solidated statements of operations for the year ended August 31,
2002.



GOODWILL

The following table presents the impact of adopting SFAS No.142
on net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share had the stan-
dard been in effect for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000.

(in millions, except per-share data) 2002 2001 2000
Net income (loss) as reported $(3,110.2) $(1235) $497.2
Adjustments:

Amortization of goodwill, net of tax - 127.0 3.6
Adjusted net income (loss) $(3,110.2) $ 35 $5008
Basic net income (loss) per share

as reported $ (398 $ (0.19 $ 083
Basic net income (loss) per share

adjusted $ (898 $ 001 $ 084
Diluted net income (loss) per share

as reported $ (398 $ (0.19 $ 0.80
Diluted net income (loss) per share

adjusted $ (398 $ 001 $ 0.80
Shares used to compute, as reported

Basic 780.9 6418 599.4

Diluted 780.9 641.8 623.5
Shares used to compute, adjusted

Basic 780.9 641.8 599.4

Diluted 780.9 656.6 6235

Goodwill information for each reportable segment is as follows
(in millions):

August 31, Goodwill Goodwill - August 31,
2001  Additions Impairment 2002

Fiscal 2002
Global Operations $1,927.8  $2,181.1  $(2,500.0) $1,608.9
Technology Solutions 50.7 28.8 - 79.5
Global Services 8.7 398.9 - 407.6
MicroSystems - 67.9 - 67.9
$1,087.2  $2,676.7 $(2,500.0) $2,163.9
August 31, Goodwill Goodwill  August 31,
2000  Additions Amortization 2001

Fiscal 2001
Global Operations $184  $2,0455 $(136.1)  $1927.8
Technology Solutions 125 41.0 (2.8) 50.7
Global Services 8.7 1.0 1.0) 8.7
$396  $2,087.5 $(139.9) $1,987.2

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company'’s intangible assets are categorized into three main
classes; supply agreements, intellectual property agreements and
other. The supply agreements primarily resulted from the Company’s
acquisitions of several Nortel manufacturing facilities during the third
quarter of fiscal 2000. The second class primarily consists of intel-
lectual property agreements resulting from Solectron’s acquisitions
of various IBM facilities in fiscal 1999 and 2000. The third class,
other, consists of miscellaneous acquisition related costs from the
Company's various asset purchases. The following tables summarize
the gross amounts and accumulated amortization for each major
class as of August 31, 2002 and 2001 (in millions):

Intellectual
Supply Property
Agreement Agreement Other Total
Fiscal 2002
Gross amount $ 445.1 $106.4 $163.5 $ 715.0
Accumulated
amortization (80.7) (34.6) (61.7) (177.0)
Impairment (191.2) - (40.5) (231.7)
Carrying value $173.2 $ 718 $ 61.3 $ 306.3
Intellectual
Supply Property
Agreement Agreement Other Total
Fiscal 2001
Gross amount $417.1 $103.0 $1365 $ 656.6
Accumulated
amortization (41.9) (23.9) (49.7) (115.5)
Impairment — — (22.9) (22.9)
Carrying value $375.2 $ 79.1 $ 639 $ 5182

Amortization expense was $61.5 million and $82.2 million, respec-
tively, in fiscal 2002 and 2001. The Company expects that its annual
amortization expense reportable as required by SFAS No. 142 for
these intangibles for each of the next five fiscal years would be
approximately $57 million each year based on existing balances.



Note 18. Net Income (Loss) Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted
net income (loss) per share:

Years ended August 31,
(in millions, except per-share data) 2002 2001 2000

Net income (loss) before cumulative

effect of change in accounting

principle, net of income taxes $(3,110.2) $(123.5) $500.7
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle, net of

income taxes - - (35)
Net income (loss)—basic $(3,110.2) $(123.5) $497.2
Weighted average shares—basic 780.9 641.8 599.4
Common shares issuable upon

exercise of stock options - - 24.1
Weighted average shares—diluted 780.9 6418 6235

Basic net income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) before cumulative
effect of change in accounting

principle $ (398 $ (0.19) $ 084
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle - - (0.01)

Net income (loss) per share $ (3.98) $ (0.19) $ 0.83

Diluted net income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) before cumulative
effect of change in accounting
principle $ (3.98) $ (0.19) $ 0.80
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle - - -

Net income (loss) per share $ (3.98) $ (0.19) $ 0.80

In fiscal 2002 and 2001, common shares issuable upon exercise of
stock options were excluded from the diluted calculation because
the effect was anti-dilutive. Stock options with exercise prices
greater than the average fair market price for a period, which are
defined as anti-dilutive, are not included in the diluted earnings per
share calculations because of their anti-dilutive effect. As a result,
3.1 million options were excluded from the diluted calculation in
fiscal 2000.

In addition, the calculations for the years ended August 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000 did not include 57.6, 100.5 and 39.7 million
common shares, respectively, issuable upon conversion of the
LYONs as they would have been anti-dilutive. The calculation for the
year ended August 31, 2002 also did not include 78.0 million com-
mon shares issuable upon conversion of the Company’s ACES, as
the effect would have been anti-dilutive.



Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Solectron Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Solectron Corporation and subsidiaries as of August 31, 2002 and
2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stock-
holders' equity, comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended August 31, 2002.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reason-
able assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting prin-
ciples used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to
above present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of
Solectron Corporation and subsidiaries as of August 31, 2002 and
2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended August 31, 2002,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets” on September 1, 2001.

KPMG LLP

Mountain View, California
October 31, 2002

Management Responsibilities

Solectron’s management is responsible for the preparation, integrity
and objectivity of the financial information presented in this report.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and
include certain amounts based on management's best estimates and
judgment.

Management is also responsible for establishing and maintaining
the company’s accounting systems and internal controls, which are
designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safe-
guarded and transactions are properly recorded. These systems
and controls are monitored and reviewed through a comprehensive
internal audit program. In addition, our Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics prescribes that the company and all of our associates
conform to the highest standards of ethical behavior.

The company’s independent auditors, KPMG LLP, provide an
objective and independent review of the financial statements and
the fairness of the information in those statements. Their report
appears on this page.

On behalf of all stockholders, the board of directors exercises it
responsibilities relating to these financial statements through its
Audit Committee, which consists solely of independent directors
who meet applicable test for financial literacy. The independent audi-
tors report directly to the Audit Committee, and our internal auditors
report status and findings directly to the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee meets periodically with the independent auditors and the
company's internal auditors, both privately and with management
present, to review and discuss the scope and results of their audit
work, the adequacy of internal controls and the quality of financial
reporting.

LN

Koichi Nishimura, Ph.D.
Chairman of the Board,
President and

Chief Executive Officer

ginbecy

Kiran Patel
Executive VP and
Chief Financial Officer

October 31, 2002



Safe Harbor Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report should be read in conjunction with our report
on form 10-K for the year ended August 30, 2002.

This annual report contains forward-looking statements within

the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, that involve a number of risks and uncertain-
ties based on current expectations, forecasts and assumptions
that could cause actual outcomes and results to differ materially.
Specific forward-looking statements include: our return to prof-
itability, our ability to generate long-term profitable growth for our
company and shareholders, our ability to continue generating cash
from operations and working capital improvements, moving 60
percent of our manufacturing capacity to low-cost areas by fiscal
2004, realizing the benefits of our restructuring actions, keeping a
tight rein on costs and improving working capital. Additional risks

and uncertainties include the length and severity of the current
economic downturn overall and in the telecommunications and
other electronics technology sectors; our ability to manage customer
demand through the downturn; the ability to effectively integrate
recent acquisitions; the ability to effectively implement restructuring
plans; the risk of price fluctuation; reliance on major customers;
fluctuations in operating results; changes in technology; competition;
risks associated with international sales and operations; interest
rate risk; environmental regulations; market risk; segment risk; the
ability to retain key personnel; and intellectual property rights
enforcement. Other potential risks that could cause actual events
to differ materially are included in filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, including Forms 8-K, 10-K, 10-Q, S-3 and
S-4 for Solectron Corporation. Solectron disclaims any intention or
obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.



Corporate Governance

Solectron has long upheld a set of basic beliefs to guide our
actions. Among those beliefs is the responsibility to conduct our-
selves with the highest standards of ethical behavior when relating
to customers, suppliers, employees, investors and the communities
where we work.

We believe our corporate governance policies and practices meet
or exceed the standards defined in proposed and recently enacted
legislation.

Independent Directors

+ A majority of our board members are independent of the company
and its management as defined by the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the New York Stock Exchange.

+ The non-management directors regularly meet in executive
session, without management, as part of the normal agenda of
our board meetings.

Nominating and Governance Committee

« The Nominating and Governance Committee has adopted a
charter that meets SEC and NYSE standards.

+ Nominating and Governance Committee members all meet the
applicable tests for independence from company management.

+ Review of the management succession plan is the responsibility
of the Nominating and Governance Committee as defined by
our Corporate Governance Guidelines.

Compensation Committee

+ The Compensation Committee meets the applicable tests for
independence as defined by the SEC, the NYSE and Internal
Revenue Services rules.

+ The Compensation Committee has adopted a charter that meets
SEC and NYSE standards.

- Incentive compensation plans are reviewed and approved by the
Compensation Committee as part of its charter.

« Director compensation guidelines are determined by the
Compensation Committee as defined by our Corporate
Governance Guidelines.

Audit Committee

« The board’s Audit Committee has established policies that are
consistent with the corporate reform laws for auditor independence.

+ Audit Committee members all meet the applicable tests for
independence from company management and requirements for
financial literacy.

+ The chair of the Audit Committee has the requisite financial
management expertise.

« KPMG LLP, our independent auditors, reports directly to the Audit
Committee.

« An ethics hot line (voicemail and email) is available to all employees,
customers and suppliers to enable confidential and anonymous
reporting to the Audit Committee.

+ The internal audit function of the company reports its status and
findings directly to the Audit Committee.

Shareholder Approval of Equity

Compensation Plans

+ The company requires shareholder approval of all equity-
compensation plans and any repricing of options contemplated
by the company.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

« Solectron has adopted a set of Corporate Governance Guidelines
that meet the standards defined by the SEC and the NYSE, includ-
ing specifications for director qualification and responsibility.

+ Continuing education for directors is specified as part of the
annual agenda of the board meetings, under our Corporate
Governance Guidelines.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

« Solectron has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
that includes a conflict of interest policy and applies to all direc-
tors, officers and employees.

« All employees are trained in the Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics as part of new-employee orientation, and all are required
to affirm in writing their acceptance of the code.

+ All employees are required to annually reaffirm in writing their
acceptance of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

+ The company’s Ethics Office maintains a hot line available to all
employees, customers and suppliers to facilitate confidential and
anonymous reporting of any questionable activities.

Personal Loans to Executive

Officers and Directors
+ Solectron does not provide personal loans or extend credit to any
executive officer or director.



